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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Xu Haidong #i#E X
Chairman */Z

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”)
of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (the “Company”), | hereby report that,
for the year 2021, the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) achieved a sales revenue
of HK$1,681.7 million, representing an increase of
27.0% when comparing with last year, and earned a
profit attributable to shareholders of the Company of
HK$125.4 million, as compared to a loss of HK$1,013.3
million last year. Excluding the loss of HK$1,080.9
million arising from the disposal of China Electronics
Optics Valley Union Holding Company Limited
("CEOVU") recorded last year, profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company increased by HK$57.8
million, or 85.6%. Basic earnings per share was HK6.18
cents.

AANERRPBEETERABRFEBERAA (AR
ANESEE([EEg)EM  2021FARFIRHE
EAR ([AEE]) BERHEEWA,681.788%
T BEF EHA27.0% BB AR E MR F
RI12548 88T MEAEFRAFEEI013388
BT e Tat REFHBHEEFEARH ST
ERAR ([FEXA]) EEREIE1,080.95EH
70 v SREBAR B MG A 057 .8F BB st ek
85.6% - FREAREF A6.18%E 1l -

4 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2021



The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK1.9 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil). Subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting, the dividend will be distributed on or before 29
July 2022.

Looking ahead, the global integrated circuits industry
will generally maintain a stable development while
the domestic integrated circuits design industry
and market will gain further momentum. With the
further implementation of the application of domestic
integrated circuits and the application of the state
cryptographic algorithm, as well as the promotion
of the 5G application, the rapid development of
the intelligent connected vehicle and Internet of
Things market boosting and raising the demand for
information security, there will be market opportunities
for the Group’s business. Global semiconductor
production capacity is expected to remain tight in
2022, and maintaining production capacity and the
provision of products will continue to pose a lot of
challenges to the Group’s operations. In the face of
both opportunities and challenges, the Group will
continue to closely monitor the domestic market
demand, further strengthen close cooperation with
suppliers and seize market opportunities, thereby
consolidating the Group’s leading position in the smart
card chips sector.

On the other hand, using security chip design and
application technologies accumulated over the years,
the Group will continue to strengthen investment in
research and development in the sector of security
chips for the Internet of Things with a market-oriented
approach, optimise product structure with
technological innovation, strive to meet customers’
needs and create a sustainable future. At the same
time, the Group will perfect the expansion of the
application industries such as the intelligent connected
vehicle and Internet of Things, and strengthen
efforts to promote its brand so as to capture future
development opportunities and enhance the Group’s
core competitiveness in the security chips industry.

Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHRE

Mr. Dong Haoran resigned as the Chairman of the
Board and non-executive director of the Company in
April 2021. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Mr. Dong for his invaluable contributions during
his tenure of service.

In September 2021, Mr. Yu Jian resigned as the Deputy
Chairman of the Board and executive director of the
Company. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
thank Mr. Yu for his invaluable contributions during
his tenure of service. On behalf of the Board, | am
delighted to welcome Mr. Chang Feng as executive
director of the Company. The new director will no
doubt extend the diversity and supplement the talent
base of the Board.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
staff members for their contributions and efforts in the
past year. | would also like to express our most sincere
gratitude to our shareholders and business partners for
their continuing co-operation and support.

Xu Haidong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Results overview

Revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$1,681.7 million, representing
an increase of 27.0% when comparing with last
year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to HK$125.4 million, as compared to a loss
of HK$1,013.3 million last year. Excluding the loss of
HK$1,080.9 million arising from the disposal of CEOVU
recorded last year, profit attributable to owners of the
Company increased by HK$57.8 million, or 85.6%.
Basic earnings per share was HK6.18 cents (2020: basic
loss per share was HK49.92 cents).

Integrated circuits design operation

The Group’s integrated circuits design operation
comprises the design of security smart card chips and
the development of application system. Currently, the
Group’s products are mainly used in the sectors of
identity authentication, financial payment, government
utilities, telecommunications, intelligent connected
vehicle and Internet of Things security. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Group has obtained 26
new patents and registered 1 new software copyright
and 3 new integrated circuits layout designs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

The global integrated circuits market demand was
stable in 2021, and the domestic economic situation
has been improving with industry boom rebounding
and market demand recovering. Despite industry
competition remaining intense, selling prices of the
Group's major products increased slightly due to
shortage of integrated circuits production capacity
resulting in demand for smart card chip products
outstripping supply. During the year, through enriching
the product portfolio of telecommunication card chips
and increasing promotion efforts, market share grew
and sales volume of telecommunication card chips
increased when comparing with last year. With the
market competitiveness of domestic-made bank card
chips further strengthened, sales volume of bank card
chips increased when comparing with last year. The
market demand for third generation social security
cards has gradually increased as the issuance of third
generation social security cards has started on a
large scale in all provinces and cities nationwide, and
sales volume of social security card chips increased
when comparing with last year. The promotion of
5G network applications has increased the demand
for information security, which has led the Group to
achieve better results in the promotion of intelligent
connected vehicle and Internet of Things security chips
application market, and sales volume of intelligent
connected vehicle and Internet of Things security
products increased significantly when comparing with
last year. The peak for replacing identity authentication
products has passed, and the demand as well as sales
volume of identity authentication products decreased
when comparing with last year. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Group’s total sales volume
increased by 20.6% when comparing with last year.
The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 was HK$1,681.7 million, representing an increase
of 27.0% when comparing with last year. Overall gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021
was 33.9%, at a level similar to that of last year.

mmiﬁAﬁE&%%ﬁ%%i%E'ﬁm%@
/Wzﬁii; ESRERF  MiGHRKEF - 8

HES %Wfiﬂﬂ BREKERELZHRE
@LUJ#EDDL\T%I AEEBXTEERRHEEE
BAERMEF - Eﬁqﬁﬂ%ﬁ;%&ﬁfuﬁém,
AERMAHEENE  MGOHBRBEMREA EFF
SREEEREFAMER - BERESR R
FHEHFNE—FINE  SRREAHEHEER
EFBFMEE - ’*:Wiﬂ%ﬁsntilﬂémi’]
ERBRRERK mMBHRESEN  LERE
RERFHEEEREFEMER - SGRZERD
HEEE) ?@?%iignu {58 7N & [ 36 55 e AR G
=S %Eﬁ ZERGAERMSNERERGRTR
R BEEBERYERELERHEEERET
ARER AR FDEAERDBEFRREE -
EREMTR  FOEEREEEREFHRN
& o B E2021F 12831 B IEFE - NREBE B
EEREF LF20.6% - REBEHE2021F128
3MBIEFENRA A8 7TABBT  BEF
F27.0% ° EE2021F 12831 B It FE R L
K KE33.9% @ BEFHEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and marketing costs for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to HK$83.0 million (2020:
HK$73.9 million). The percentage of selling and
marketing costs to revenue decreased to 4.9% from
5.6% last year. The Group continued to implement
stringent cost control measures during the year.

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to HK$388.1 million,
representing an increase of 21.4% when comparing
with last year. The increase in administrative expenses
was primarily due to an increase in research and
development costs during the year. The percentage
of administrative expenses to revenue decreased to
23.1% from 24.1% last year. The Group continued to
implement stringent cost control measures during the
year.

Research and development costs for the year ended
31 December 2021 amounted to HK$271.8 million
(2020: HK$212.0 million). The percentage of research
and development costs to revenue was 16.2% (2020:
16.0%). Research and development during the year
primarily focused on the research and development
of security chip and secure microcontroller unit chip
products, the continuous improvements in smart card
products’ performance and competitiveness, research
on the application of security chips in the intelligent
connected vehicle sector and Internet of Things sector,
and the development of application systems and
solutions, etc.

BEEEFNWRE DM

HE2021F12A31H LFEMHE RTIGHER
RAE83.0BEBIT (20204 7398 BB L) - 4
ERTIGHERAERANB D LA EFH5.6%
TPREZES.9% o ANEEF U E E i RS B AIE H

R

HZE2021%F12A8318B L FEMNTTHRFE X A388.1
BEBIL BEFRE EFA21.4%  1THE G
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THASXMMBANB S LBEEFR241% N BE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

Other income

Government grants recognised as income decreased
by 61.8% to HK$8.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, resulting from fewer government
subsidies received for research and development costs
incurred in the year.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

The Group consistently employs a prudent treasury
policy and generally finances its working capital and
funding requirements through internal resources, and
bank and other borrowings. At 31 December 2021, the
Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to
HK$517.9 million, of which 98.1% was denominated
in Renminbi, 1.6% in United States dollars and 0.3% in
Hong Kong dollars (2020: HK$465.4 million, of which
95.3% was denominated in Renminbi, 2.9% in Hong
Kong dollars and 1.8% in United States dollars).

At 31 December 2021, the Group had bank and other
borrowings of HK$672.7 million, all were due within
one year and all were denominated in Renminbi (2020:
HK$712.3 million, all were due within one year and
all were denominated in Renminbi). Among these
borrowings, (i) all were unsecured (2020: HK$58.8
million were secured by deposits of the Group and
HK$653.5 million were unsecured), and (ii) all were
borrowed at fixed interest rates (2020: all were
borrowed at fixed interest rates). At 31 December
2021, committed borrowing facilities available to the
Group but not drawn amounted to HK$806.8 million.

HA WA

BARAEE A =2021F12A31 8 It FEZEEM
RENABEXNAESCBRNEDRLY FREER
BUWAZBITEE) T61.8%ZE8.1THEETT -

BBEREARBDES

AEE-EXRAEENERBRRERBERANRNI
BRMBITREMEERDTEEESHNTR -
R2021F12A318 ' AEEFERe LREEE
YRS17TIOEBERIL  EF D AIEIBI%UAR
B2 1.6% A F I R0.3% A B LA (20204 ¢
465485 BB  EFR D BIABEIB3%AARE -
29%AB T R1.8%AETEER) -

M2021%F 128318 - AEBNRTREMEEA
6727EBAETL 2N —FREBEEHUA
R¥EEHE (20205 : 7123EEBT 28RN —F
RE R ZEUAREIE) - ZFEEPROEH
AEE (20204 S8 8E BB T IIUNAEE 2
FRERIEKX653.58 88 T AERE) - Mz
AR FENEREE (20205 : 2HUBTMEE
E) c A2021F12A318  AEENABAZE
EEEEHEAEA68HE BT -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s revenue is mainly denominated in
Renminbi and payments are denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. The Group will make use of
hedging contracts, when appropriate, to hedge the
risk of foreign exchange fluctuation arising from its
operations.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
assets of HK$769.5 million (2020: HK$916.4 million).
The gearing ratio of the Group is calculated as net debt
divided by total equity and net debt of the Group. At
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Group
was in net cash position.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31 December 2021, the Group did not pledge any
assets as collateral for its borrowings (2020: certain
assets of the Group with an aggregate carrying value
of HK$59.4 million were pledged as collateral for
borrowings of the Group).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2021, the Group did not have any
material outstanding capital commitment (2020: nil) for
the acquisition of fixed assets and intangible assets. The
Group did not have any material contingent liability at
31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

BEEEFNWRE DM

AEBRATZUARBEEMNFTIAARE K
BLEE AEEGRNERNBETE QTR
BHEBKIMNERE R

M2021F12A31B - ASERBHEEFEAR
769.5E 88T (20209 : 916.4EE B L) - A&
EMERB B ERUAEBNER FREMRAER
BERBEFFEFE - R2021F12A8318 KRR
2020F12A318 - AEEBERFHREMMNA -

EERH

MR2021F12A831H » AEBEWE AHESREET
A EE (20204 : AEBRmMABESI 4B EE T
METEEEBEAASBEEENERR) -

EXEERIFER

M20215F 128318 - AEBEEERCEENRE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BERENWE DN

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

At 31 December 2021, the Group had approximately
410 employees, the majority of whom were based in
the PRC. Employee benefit expenses for the year were
HK$248.9 million.

The Group recognises the importance of high calibre
and competent staff and has a strict recruitment policy
and performance appraisal scheme. Remuneration
policies are largely in line with industry practices,
and are formulated on the basis of performance and
experience and will be reviewed regularly. Bonuses and
other merit payments are linked with the performance
of the Group and of the individuals as incentive to
optimise performance.

The Group’s employee training is divided into three
levels: corporate level, departmental level and
individual level. Corporate level training focus mainly
on cross-departmental and internal all-purpose
trainings, such as new employee trainings, and quality
and safety requirements trainings. Departmental level
training focus mainly on enhancing knowledge and
skills in departmental professional areas. Trainings for
individuals act as a useful supplement to the two types
of training above.

18 & % B BUR

R2021F128318  XEEERBH4108EE -
AR FEATIE AFEREBFIHALA
2489EB & AE T °

AEEERINEFAT REBREENEEN - I
BERENBEBRRRIERRTATE -RE
MF R B XA B OISR - DRKRRRT
YRR B i 2 R I BT 30 FE R R AR 5T  TEAT M EAtb
REDRIAEERERNEBEREMETE - AR
BB EBRERS -

AEBETIHEINDRABE  FPAARLBEA=
Ao RAARBIAIEREEPT - W B0 B A IS
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The Company is committed to achieving the best
corporate governance practices by emphasising
its accountability, transparency, independence,
responsibility and fairness. The Company is dedicated
to exercise corporate governance through regular
reviews of its adopted practices with reference to the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021. The following summarises
the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprised two
executive directors, two non-executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. The roles
of the chairman of the Board are segregated from
the managing director. The chairman of the Board is
responsible for leading and overseeing the functioning
of the Board and the strategic development of the
Group. The managing director is delegated with
the authority and responsibility for managing the
Group’s business, and the implementation of the
Group's strategies in achieving the overall business
objectives. Throughout the year ended 31 December
2021, the position of the chairman of the Board and
the managing director were not held by the same
individual. As at 31 December 2021, the position
of the chairman of the Board and the managing
director were held separately by Mr. Xu Haidong
and Mr. Liu Hongzhou, respectively. Such division of
responsibilities helps to reinforce their independence
and accountability. There are no financial, business,
family or other material relationships among the
directors (including the chairman of the Board and the
managing director).

Corporate Governance Report
TRERQHRS
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Corporate Governance Report
N :A\Aiﬁﬂ:

All the directors, including the non-executive directors,
will be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
every three years in accordance with the Listing Rules
and the bye-laws of the Company. The remuneration
of the directors are determined with reference to their
duties and to the prevailing market conditions.

The Board is responsible for the formulation of long
term business objectives, strategies and plans, and
to monitor and control the operating and financial
performance of the Group. The day-to-day operations
and implementation of business objectives are
delegated to the managing director. The management
is delegated with the necessary authority to manage
the daily operations and perform its duties.

The Board is also responsible for performing overall
corporate governance duties, including formulating and
reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policy
and practice, reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, formulating,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
applicable to directors, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code. During the year, the
Board has performed all of the above functions.

The Board is responsible for appointing new directors
to fill any vacancy on the Board. The Company’s
policy concerning diversity of board members (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) sets out the approach to
achieve diversity of the Board members. Appointment
of directors will be based on merit that complements
and expands the skills and experience of the Board,
and after due regard to factors which include but is
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience towards
achieving diversity of the Board members. During
the year, the Board has reviewed the Board Diversity
Policy to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Board
considered that diversity of the Board members has
been achieved as the Board is composed of director
from a diverse range of background.

EEZ (BRIFVITEF)HRERETRAIRK

ZIS AN AR A =FHRET X LA B
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MEE °
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All directors have actively participated in the review
and monitoring of the Company’s business. The Board
meets regularly and at least 4 times a year. Between
scheduled meetings, the senior management of the
Group provides information to the Board on a regular
basis regarding the activities and development in
the businesses of the Group. The directors have full
access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. With respect to regular meetings
of the Board, the directors will be given written notice
of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than
3 days prior to the meeting. For other meetings,
directors will be given as much notice as is reasonable
and practicable in the circumstances. If a director has
a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be
material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting. Independent non-executive directors
who, and whose close associates, have no material
interest in the matter should be present at that Board
meeting. All minutes of Board and Board committee
meetings are kept by the company secretary of the
Company for record with sufficient details of the
matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or Board committee(s), including any concerns
raised or dissenting views expressed by any director.
These minutes are available for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by any director.
The attendance record of the directors at general
meeting(s), Board meetings and Board committee
meetings held in 2021 are set out on page 28 of this
annual report. Besides providing sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Group, all directors
have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of the offices held in other public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments, and
updated the Company on any subsequent changes in
a timely manner. Appropriate insurance on directors’
liabilities are in force to protect the directors against
their potential legal liabilities to third parties that may
be incurred in the course of performing their duties.
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The directors acknowledge the need to continue to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills for
making contributions to the Company. The trainings
and continuous professional development activities
with appropriate emphasis on the roles and functions
of a director of a listed company participated by the
directors in 2021 are set out below.
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EEMRTERERRLFT AT NE K IKEE
ARARAELER - EFR2021F B EE
FHRBEEzACMBELANEIINFESR
XERADHINWOT -

Reading Attending
regulatory external
requirements seminars/
updates trainings

LIk SHEIIR
EERE AR

EHER g E

Non-executive directors FHITES

Xu Haidong* BCE

Liu Jinmei £

Dong Haoran** B AR
Executive directors HITES

Liu Hongzhou £

Chang Feng* T+

Yu Jian** =R
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITEE

Chan Kay Cheung PRIE S
Qiu Hongsheng ER A
Chow Chan Lum R

v 4
v 4
v

AN NN
AN

*  Appointed in 2021

** Resigned in 2021

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the company
secretary of the Company, Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, has met
the requirement on professional training under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS (THE “MODEL CODE")

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules to regulate the
directors’ securities transactions. All directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have fully complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION
COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2021, the remuneration and
nomination committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Qiu Hongsheng,
Mr. Chan Kay Cheung and Mr. Chow Chan Lum,
and a non-executive director Ms. Liu Jinmei. Mr. Qiu
Hongsheng is the chairman of the remuneration and
nomination committee. The terms of reference of
the remuneration and nomination committee, which
described its authority and duties, is available on the
website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The principal responsibilities of the remuneration
and nomination committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and the remuneration of the directors and the
senior management, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate objectives, determining, with
delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual executive director and senior management,
making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors, identifying
and making recommendation to the Board on possible
appointees as directors, making recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to appointment or
re-appointment of directors, succession planning
for directors and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive directors.
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The Company’s nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) sets out the criteria and procedures to be
adopted when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as director of the Company. A
summary of the nomination criteria of the Nomination
Policy is set out below.

(1) ability to contribute to the effective carrying out
by the Board of its responsibilities;

(2) effect on the Board’s composition and the
diversity of its members in all its aspects,
which includes but is not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, and
professional experience;

(3) independence of the candidate; and
(4) commitment to devote sufficient time.

The Board will review the Nomination Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

In making recommendations to the Board in respect
of the composition of the Board, the appointment,
re-appointment or removal of directors, the
remuneration and nomination committee will give
due regard to nomination criteria as set out in the
Nomination Policy.

During the year, the remuneration and nomination
committee held three meetings. The attendance
record of the committee members at these meetings
are set out on page 28 of this annual report. The
work performed by the remuneration and nomination
committee during the year included reviewing the
remuneration policy and the remuneration of the
directors and the senior management, assessing
performance of the executive directors, determining
the remuneration of the executive directors, reviewing
the policy for the nomination of directors, making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of directors, and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive
directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the number
of senior management (excluding directors) whose
remuneration fell within the band from HK$1,000,001
up to HK$1,500,000 and from HK$1,500,001 up to
HK$2,000,000 were one and one respectively. Details of
the remuneration of the directors for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out on pages 141 to 142 of this
annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2021, the audit committee
comprised three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng
and Mr. Chow Chan Lum. Mr. Chan Kay Cheung is
the chairman of the audit committee. The terms of
reference of the audit committee, which described
its authority and duties, is available on the website
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(www.hkex.com.hk) and the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn).

The audit committee is responsible for providing
an independent review and supervision of financial
reporting, overseeing and conducting an annual review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, and ensuring the
external auditor are independent and the effectiveness
of the audit process. The audit committee examines
all matters relating to the accounting principles and
policies adopted by the Group, auditing functions,
internal controls, risk management and financial
reporting. External auditor and the directors are
invited to attend the committee meetings as and when
necessary. The audit committee meets at least twice
a year with the external auditor. The audit committee
also serves as a channel of communication between the
Board and the external auditor.

During the year, the audit committee held two
meetings. The attendance record of the committee
members at these meetings are set out on page 28 of
this annual report. The work performed by the audit
committee during the year included reviewing the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2020, the unaudited
consolidated interim financial statements of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and the audit
plan and approach of the external auditor, monitoring
the progress and results of the audit regularly and
reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.
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INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company’s audit department is responsible for
carrying out analysis and independent appraisal on
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. The duties
of the audit department include:

o reviewing all important operations and internal
controls of the Group;

o comprehensive audits of the practices, procedures,
expenditure and internal controls of all important
operational units and support units and
subsidiaries on a regular basis; and

e  special reviews of areas of concern identified by
the management or the audit committee.

The audit department reports directly to the audit
committee and has direct access to the Board through
the chairman of the audit committee. The audit
department may directly report to the audit committee
without consulting the management.

The audit department issued reports to senior
management covering various operational and
financial units of the Group. The audit department
also conducted reviews of major projects and contracts
as well as areas of concern, if any, identified by the
management.

Concerns which have been reported by the audit
department were monitored regularly by the
management and by the audit committee until
corrective measures have been implemented.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the fees
payable to the Company’s external auditor in respect of
audit and non-audit services provided to the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out below.

S BS % B A

REE2021F12831HIEFE > stARQ 7 & EHH
B AR ERENEZ N IEEZRE R AR T INE
ZHANENABREHIMOT -

2021
202145
HK$'000
FHT
Audit services Az PR T 2,530
Non-audit services IEEZ R -
2,530
ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT MEMNEZX

The Board is responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group and its
financial performance and cash flows during the
reporting period in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards. A statement from the
auditor about its responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is set out on pages 51
to 59 of this annual report. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Board had selected suitable accounting policies
and applied them consistently, had made prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives, and maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems,
including reviewing their effectiveness annually. The
audit committee is delegated by the Board with the
responsibility to oversee independently the Group's
financial, risk management and internal control systems
and reports to the Board on the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
annually.
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Appropriate policies and controls have been formulated
and established for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, maintaining proper
financial and accounting records, ensuring compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and identifying
and managing major risks that may impact on the
Group’s performance. As the risk management and
internal control systems are designed to manage, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, they can only be expected to provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The management is responsible for the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems, while
the audit committee oversees the actions of the
management and review the effectiveness of the
systems that have been put in place. Systems and
procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on major types of risk the Group
encounters. Operational units are responsible for
identifying the potential risks, and analysing and
evaluating the significance of such risks. Operational
units also assess the adequacy of existing controls
and implement treatment plans to mitigate such risks
and report the view of risks and proposal for the
improvement of the existing systems and procedures
regularly to the audit committee, and ultimately to the
Board on major findings. The audit committee reviews
the existing risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis and makes appropriate
improvement when necessary, with a view to enhance
the effectiveness of such systems.

The Company has engaged SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, an independent advisory firm, to conduct
an annual review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2021. The scope of review
included the internal control systems of the Group at
the entity level, as well as major business processes of
its principal subsidiary, CEC Huada Electronic Design
Co., Ltd, covering key controls such as financial,
operational and compliance controls of the Group.
The review results have been reported to the audit
committee and the Board. The Board is satisfied that
these systems were effective and adequate throughout
the year ended 31 December 2021. In this regard,
to enhance the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, the Group
has begun to implement the recommendations put
forward by SHINEWING Risk Services Limited.
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The audit committee has also held discussions with
the Group’s external auditor, to ensure that a sound
internal control system is maintained and operated by
the management in compliance with the established
procedures and standards.

The Board has reviewed and ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and the budget of the Company's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Board is responsible for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. The Company
has formulated and implemented procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in
a timely manner so as to allow all the stakeholders
to apprehend the latest position of the Group. These
procedures and their effectiveness are subject to review
on a regular basis with reference to the Listing Rules,
the Securities and Futures Ordinance and in accordance
with formulated procedures.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a
special general meeting

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, registered
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such special general meeting shall
be held within two months from the date of deposit of
such requisition.
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The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to convene a special general meeting
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with the
statutory and regulatory requirements to all the
registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the written
requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, a special general meeting will not be
convened as requested.

If within twenty one days from the date of deposit of
the requisition the Board fails to proceed to convene
a special general meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene
a special general meeting, but any special general
meeting so convened shall be held within three months
from the date of deposit of such requisition.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward
proposals at a general meeting

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
either any number of the registered shareholders
holding not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, or not
less than 100 registered shareholders, can request the
Company in writing to (a) give to shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the next general meeting notice
of any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting any statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.
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The written requisition and a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses for serving
the notice of the resolution and circulating the
statement submitted by the registered shareholders
concerned in accordance with the statutory and
regulatory requirements to all the registered
shareholders must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the company secretary of the Company not less than
six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution; and not less than
one week before the meeting in the case of any other
requisition; and where an annual general meeting is
called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
requiring notice of a resolution has been deposited,
the requisition though not deposited within the time
required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for such purpose.

The written requisition must be signed by the registered
shareholders concerned and may consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
of these shareholders. The written requisition will be
verified with the Company’s share registrars and upon
their confirmation that the requisition is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company will
ask the Board to include the resolution in the agenda
for the general meeting, and serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement submitted by
the registered shareholders concerned in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
the registered shareholders. On the contrary, if the
written requisition has been verified as not in order, the
shareholders concerned will be advised of this outcome
and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the general meeting.
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director

Pursuant to the Company’'s bye-laws, a registered
shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than
a director of the Company for election as a director
at the general meeting must validly serve (1) his/her
written notice of intention to propose a candidate
for election as a director at the general meeting; (2)
a written notice signed by the nominated candidate
of the candidate’s willingness to be elected; (3) the
nominated candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules;
and (4) the nominated candidate’s written consent to
the publication of his/her personal data, either to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong; or to the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to
the Board in writing through the company secretary of
the Company whose contact details are as follows:

Room 3403, 34th Floor, China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Facsimile: (852) 2598 9018

Email: investor@cecht.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board
at the general meetings of the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the constitutional documents of the
Company is available on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the website of the
Company.
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To facilitate the payment of dividends and/or
distributions by the Company in the future, the
shareholder of the Company approved the amendment
to the existing bye-law 138 of the bye-laws of the
Company to match the current provisions of section
54 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 29
June 2021. Details of the amendment are set out in the
circular dated 24 May 2021.

ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS

Details of the director’'s attendance at general
meetings, Board meetings and Board committee
meetings held in 2021 are set out below.

REFNARBRABRKERER LK
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Meetings attended/held
HE/BTEELR
Remuneration
and
nomination
Audit committee
committee Rk General
Note Board** B8 o meetings
Mz Ezgr ZE® ZE® RRAE
Non-executive directors FHTES
Xu Haidong* STER 1 5/5 212
Liu Jinmei 2151 5/5 212
Dong Haoran 5N 2 17 0/0
Executive directors HTEER
Liu Hongzhou ERW 5/5 22
Chang Feng Fig 3 17 0/0
Yu Jian EfR 4 2/4 13 22
Independent non-executive directors BUFHTES
Chan Kay Cheung RS 6/6 22 33 22*
Qiu Hongsheng iipride 6/6 22 3/3 212
Chow Chan Lum B 6/6 22 33 22
s Chairman * *E

ity Included a Board meeting where the chairman of the Board
met with independent non-executive directors without other
directors and management present.

Note:

1. Appointed in April 2021

2. Resigned in April 2021

34 Appointed in September 2021

4. Resigned in September 2021

* %

Hb—RELEERFCHELEETRIERTRMEERN
EEEELGHIERNTEE THTIFHNTESE -
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2021645 BFE
R2021F9FH#EZ
2021691 BEE
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Haidong, aged 52, is the Chairman of the
Board. Mr. Xu graduated from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics and holds a Master’'s
degree in Accounting, obtained a Doctorate degree
in Accounting from School of Management at Jinan
University, and is a senior economist. Mr. Xu is the
chief accountant of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd
(“Huada Semiconductor”), a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Mr. Xu was the deputy manager
of the supervision section 2 of Zhuhai City Central
Sub-branch of the People’s Bank of China, the
controller of corporate financial of State-owned Assets
Management Administration of Zhuhai City, the deputy
general manager of China Electronics Financial Co.,
Ltd, the deputy director of the finance department of
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC”), and
the financial controller of China Greatwall Technology
Group Co., Ltd (a company with its shares listing on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange). Mr. Xu was appointed as a
director of the Company with effect from April 2021.

Ms. Liu Jinmei, aged 52. Ms. Liu graduated from
Jilin University and holds a Bachelor's degree in
Chinese Language and obtained a Master’'s degree
in Business Administration from Beijing Institute of
Technology. Ms. Liu is the deputy general manageress
of Huada Semiconductor and the chairman of the
supervisory committee of Beijing Chipadvanced
Technology Inc. (a company with its shares trading
on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations
in the PRC). Ms. Liu was the marketing strategy
manageress of BOE Technology Group Co., Ltd and
the marketing manageress of China Huaxu Golden
Card Co., Ltd. Ms. Liu joined CEC Huada Electronic
Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) in 2005 as the
marketing department manageress and was in charge
of marketing for a number of years. Ms. Liu was
appointed as a director of the Company in January
2018.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Liu Hongzhou, aged 59, is the Deputy Chairman
of the Board and the Managing Director of the
Company. Mr. Liu graduated from the School of
Business of Nanjing University and holds a Postgraduate
degree in Business and Administration, and is a
senior engineer. Mr. Liu, having spent much of his
career in CEC, was a divisional deputy director of the
asset management department of CEC, an executive
director and the deputy general manager of Winfair
Development Limited, a director of the treasury
division of the investment banking department of
CEC, the deputy general manager of China Electronics
Technology Development Corporation, the deputy
general manager of the asset management department
of CEC, the deputy general manager of the Company,
a director of the general office of CEC, a director of
Shenzhen SED Industry Co., Ltd (a company with its
shares listing on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and the
managing director of Shenzhen SED Electronics Group
Co., Ltd. Mr. Liu was appointed as a director of the
Company in October 2013.

Mr. Chang Feng, aged 40. Mr. Chang graduated
from University of Science and Technology Beijing
and holds a Bachelor’s degree in Computer Science
and Technology, and obtained a Master's degree in
Retail Management from NEOMA Business School in
France. Mr. Chang is the general manager of Huada
Electronics, and the director and general manager
of Shanghai Huahong Integrated Circuit Co., Ltd.
Mr. Chang was a technical support engineer of
Oberthur Card Systems (China) Co., Ltd and a technical
support engineer of Aien Technology (China) Co.,
Ltd. Mr. Chang joined Huada Electronics in 2006 and
was the marketing manager, sales manager, sales
department manager and deputy general manager
of Huada Electronics. Mr. Chang was appointed as a
director of the Company in September 2021.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kay Cheung, aged 75. Mr. Chan was an
executive director and the deputy chief executive of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited, and the vice chairman
of The Bank of East Asia (China) Limited. Mr. Chan
joined The Bank of East Asia, Limited in 1965 and
possesses extensive knowledge and experience in the
banking industry. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers. Mr. Chan is also
an independent non-executive director of Chu Kong
Shipping Enterprises (Group) Company Limited and
SOCAM Development Limited (all being companies with
their shares listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
Mr. Chan was appointed as a director of the Company
in May 1997.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng, aged 57. Mr. Qiu graduated
from the School of Management of Harbin Institute
of Technology and holds a Postgraduate degree
in Management Science and Engineering, and is a
Certified Public Valuer in the PRC, an International
Certified Senior Enterprise Risk Manager, a Certified
M&A Dealmaker in the PRC, a senior economist and
a fund management intermediary. Mr. Qiu is an
executive director and the general manager of China
Consultants of Advisory and Finance Management Co.,
Ltd, an independent director of GRINM Semiconductor
Materials Co., Ltd and a visiting professor of Tianjin
University of Finance and Economics. Mr. Qiu worked
in 710 Research Institute of the Ministry of Aerospace
Industry of China as an economic analyst for a number
of years. Mr. Qiu joined China Consultants of Advisory
and Finance Management Co., Ltd, a company
directly managed by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC, in 1994 and focuses on management consulting
and corporation restructuring transactions. Mr. Qiu
possesses a wealth of professional knowledge and
practical experiences in corporate finance, mergers
and acquisitions, strategic integration, meticulous
management, etc. Mr. Qiu is also an independent
non-executive director of CEOVU (a company with
its shares listing on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange),
and an independent director of Valiant Co., Ltd and
China Greatwall Technology Group Co., Ltd (all being
companies with their shares listing on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange). Mr. Qiu was appointed as a director
of the Company in November 2012.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEAEHE

Mr. Chow Chan Lum, aged 71. Mr. Chow graduated
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in 1974,
received a Postgraduate Diploma in Accountancy
from the University of Strathclyde in Glasgow, United
Kingdom in 1975 and was awarded a Postgraduate
Diploma in Chinese Laws by the University of Macau in
1987. Mr. Chow has been a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Scotland since 1979 and is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chow is a member of the Foreign
Experts Consultative Committee on China Independent
Auditing Standards of the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC. Mr. Chow served on a number of committees
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, including as the deputy chairman of the
Auditing & Assurance Standards Committee, and a
member of the Investigation Panel and the Professional
Standards Monitoring Committee and as president
of The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow
serves as an honorary advisor and committee member
of various social bodies, and has been a member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
of Guangdong Province, the PRC from 1997 to 2012.
Mr. Chow was awarded the Medal of Honor by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC in 2013 and conferred the Honorary
Doctorate by The Hong Kong Academy for Performing
Arts in 2021. Mr. Chow was appointed as a director of
the Company in June 2015.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Ng Kui Kwan, aged 60, is the company secretary
of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a Bachelor of Arts
degree in Accounting from the University of Liverpool
in United Kingdom. Mr. Ng is a member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Ng has many years of experience in
auditing, finance and administration. Mr. Ng joined the
Company in November 2008.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The directors submit their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group is the design and sale
of integrated circuit chips. The activities of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 33 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 60 of
this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK1.9 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil) totalling HK$38,568,000 (2020: nil).
The dividend is subject to approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 13 to
the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

At 31 December 2021, the issued share capital of
the Company consisted of 2,029,872,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. Details of movements in the share
capital of the Company during the year are set out in
Note 23 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
and the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
64 of this annual report and Note 32 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$432,211,000 (2020: nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company implements a dividend policy which
aims to provide a stable dividend to shareholders.
The Company will take into account, among others,
the following factors when formulating proposals for
dividend distribution:

(a) the financial performance of the Group; and

(b)  the future funding requirements of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 144 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review, discussion and
analysis of its performance for the year and the
outlook of its businesses are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 12 and on
pages 4 to 6 of this annual report, respectively. Such
discussions constitute an integral part of this report.

The performance and results of the Group’s businesses
are subject to various important factors, including
the relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers. The Board believes that the employees
are one of the Group’s most important assets. The
Company will strive to ensure that the remuneration
level of employees is in line with industry practices
and prevailing market conditions, and remuneration
of employees will be determined based on their
performance. Being people-oriented, the Group
ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also
continues to improve and regularly review and update
its policies on remuneration and benefits, training, and
occupational health and safety.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

In addition, the Board places great emphasis on a
long-term and stable relationship with the Group’s
customers and suppliers for the continuous success and
growth of the Group’s businesses. The Group has an
extensive sales network across the PRC and to manage
such network requires a close working relationship with
our customers directly and through distributors, agents
and other business partners. The Group will continue
to strengthen its customer service to provide superior
quality service to the users, and strive to achieve the
fastest response time and highest customer satisfaction
levels in the industry. The Group’s continuous effort
to build trust and strengthen mutually beneficial
cooperation with its customers and suppliers has
facilitated to foster long-term cooperation relationships
with them.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACTORS

As nearly all of the Group’s revenue is attributable to
the market in the PRC, the results and performance
of the Group’s businesses depend on the growth
of the information technology industry in the PRC,
particularly the electronic information technology
industry. Although the information technology industry
is demonstrating a growing trend in the past which is in
part supported by favourable government policies, any
negative trend in the information technology industry
or other restrictive policies may materially and adversely
affect the business, financial condition and results of
operation of the Group.

The PRC integrated circuit market is highly competitive
with relatively short product cycles, and is subject
to policies of the government. The Group’s results
of operation substantially depend on the successful
execution of its business strategy and development
plan to maintain its leading position in the design of
integrated circuit chips industry in the PRC. The Group
may face challenges in implementing its business
strategies, and its ability to achieve its goals may be
adversely affected by various factors, some of which
are beyond its control. If the Group is not able to
execute its business strategy and development plan, its
businesses, financial condition and results of operation
may be materially and adversely affected.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICY

As the practitioner and promotor of the integrated
circuit chips design industry in the PRC, the Group
is committed to operating its business in an
environmentally-friendly manner. Although most
of the Group’s businesses are not subject to any
environmental protection rules and restrictions, the
Board believes that operating the Group’s businesses
in an environmentally-friendly manner is crucial to
fulfilling its corporate social responsibilities.

In order to maintain a high standard of staff awareness
of the relevant rules and regulations, the Group offers
periodical trainings to its management personnel. As
a result of the Group’s commitment to environmental
protection and through the implementation of
advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe
and environmentally-friendly operation for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The Company is preparing a Corporate Social
Responsibility Report with reference to the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
as set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules which will
be published separately on the website of the Company
(www.cecht.com.cn) and on the website of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkex.com.hk)
within four months after the end of the financial year.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Board believes that compliance with laws and
regulations is the cornerstone of an enterprise and
attaches considerable importance to it. Furthermore,
as the shares of the Company are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company is
also subject to the rules and requirements under the
Listing Rules and the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"). To the best knowledge of the Board, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations throughout the year ended 31 December
2021.
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DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Non-executive Directors

Xu Haidong (Chairman) (appointed as director and
Chairman on 1 April 2021)

Liu Jinmei

Dong Haoran (resigned on 1 April 2021)

Executive Directors

Liu Hongzhou (Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director) (appointed as Deputy Chairman on 1
September 2021)

Chang Feng (appointed as director on 1 September
2021)

Yu Jian (resigned on 1 September 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Chan Kay Cheung

Qiu Hongsheng

Chow Chan Lum

Mr. Chang Feng was appointed as director by the
Board on 1 September 202 1. Pursuant to bye-law 86(2)
of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Chang Feng will
hold office only until the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for
re-election.

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the
Company, Mr. Qiu Hongsheng and Mr. Liu Hongzhou
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The Company has entered into a service contract
with each of the directors of the Company containing
terms relating to, among other things, compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, and observation
of the bye-laws of the Company. The directors of the
Company will be subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company and the Listing Rules.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and considers them to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2021, Ms. Liu Jinmei, a non-executive
director of the Company, was interested in 197,250
ordinary shares of the Company (long position)
(representing 0.01% of the issued share capital of the
Company), and Mr. Chang Feng, an executive director of
the Company, was interested in 28,000 ordinary shares of
the Company (long position) (representing 0.01% of the
issued share capital of the Company). Save as disclosed
herein, none of the directors nor the chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company or their respective
close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time
during the year had the Company or any of its
subsidiaries entered into any contract of significance
with any controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, nor had any contract of significance been
entered into for the services provided by any controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in
Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements also
fall under the definition of “continuing connected
transactions” within the meaning of the Listing
Rules. These transactions have complied with the
requirements as set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of certain of these transactions which
are subject to the reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules are set out below.

EXEN

BRAFHRABEEIN  RAFERZ ERER -
AR B SCE AT P B A AL B A a4 AR AR SR Bk
HEMMNBRABIZEMEARNGH  TERBE
] 422 s SR 2 B AR AT Y B8 8 R R AN 2 =) sk EL AR A
MBARREREMAILERNERGL -

RIELTRANERE @ K6 MBEHRRMEEPE
BENETHABRIXSTEBRHEBERS] - %
ERXZHUB BT ETRAUBUATHEZRTE -
ETZERZAET ETRANBRNFEEH
ME - BEFRHINOT -

Transaction

amount

in 2021

120215

RELHE

Notes HK$'000

Type of transaction X585 HaE FTHET

Sale of products to the CEC Group MPEEFEEKERAIHEEEM i, ii(a) 102,823

Purchase from the CEC Group and MAPREFEBKERRRE i, ii(b) 129,643
provision of services by the CEC Group EHBEEFEEKE QT

PR L 1) AR 75
Property management fee paid to the CEC MAEEFEEKE QAN i, dii 3,667
Group MEERE

Rental received from the CEC Group MPBEEFEBEKE RARWRES i, iv 2,604

Additions of right-of-use assets MR EAREE i v 13,182

Fees and commissions for financial services MR BEETFEBEKE QA i 78
paid to the CEC Group VBREcFEERAS

Notes:

(i) CEC is a controlling shareholder of the Company. CEC and its

subsidiaries (“CEC Group”) is therefore connected person of

the Company under the Listing Rules.

Ex

(i) HEEFEEARATZERBR  RELTHRAGE
BEFEELEMBRAR ((HREEFREKEQR]) BE
REILZBEAL -
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(i)

(iii)

On 25 April 2018, the Company entered into a business
services agreement (the “2018 Business Services Agreement”)
with CEC to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and the proposed caps of the
transactions contemplated thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021. Pursuant to
the 2018 Business Services Agreement, the CEC Group provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to the
Group, while the Group purchases raw materials, modules,
software and equipment from the CEC Group and sells
products to the CEC Group.

The 2018 Business Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 28 June 2018,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 8 June 2018.

(a) Sale of products including integrated circuit cards and
smart cards modules and chips to the CEC Group.

(b) Raw materials, modules, software and equipment
purchased from the CEC Group are for the Group’'s
research and development of integrated circuit cards,
smart cards and chips. The CEC Group also provides
products processing, testing and assembling services to
the Group.

On 13 April 2021, in order to continue the existing continuing
connected transactions contemplated under the 2018
Business Services Agreement, the Company entered into a
business services agreement (the “2021 Business Services
Agreement”) with CEC to reflect the terms of the proposed
continuing connected transactions and the proposed caps
of the transactions contemplated thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024.

Pursuant to the 2021 Business Services Agreement, the CEC
Group will provide technology development, processing,
testing and assembling services to the Group, the Group will
purchase raw materials, integrated circuit modules, softwares,
equipments and intellectual properties from the CEC Group,
and the Group will sell products such as integrated circuit
chips, modules and cards, and provide technology development
services to the CEC Group.

The 2021 Business Services Agreement and the related caps
were approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 29 June 2021,
details of which are set out in the circular dated 4 June 2021.

On 30 December 2020, the Company and CEC entered into a
master property management agreement (the “2021 Master
Property Management Agreement”), pursuant to which
the CEC Group shall from time to time provide property
management services to the Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 Master
Property Management Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company. Details of the 2021
Master Property Management Agreement are set out in the
announcement dated 30 December 2020.

(i)

(iii)
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(ivy ~ On 30 December 2020, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2021 First Master Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group shall from time to
time lease properties located within the PRC and owned by the
Group to the CEC Group for a term of three years commencing
from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December 2023. The
transactions contemplated under the 2021 First Master Lease
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Details of the 2021 First Master Lease Agreement are
set out in the announcement dated 30 December 2020.

(v) On 30 December 2020, the Company and CEC entered into
a master lease agreement (the “2021 Second Master Lease
Agreement”), pursuant to which the Group shall from time
to time rent properties located within the PRC and owned by
the CEC Group from the CEC Group for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023. The transactions contemplated under the 2021 Second
Master Lease Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company. Details of the 2021 Second
Master Lease Agreement are set out in the announcement
dated 30 December 2020.

On 25 April 2018, the Company entered into a
financial services agreement (the “2018 Financial
Services Agreement”) with China Electronics Financial
Co., Ltd (“CEC Finance"”), a subsidiary of CEC,
to regulate the terms of the proposed continuing
connected transactions and the proposed caps of the
transactions contemplated thereunder for the period
commencing from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2021.
Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, the
financial services to be provided by CEC Finance to the
Group includes deposit services, financial assistance and
fee-based or commission-based financial services.

The 2018 Financial Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 28 June 2018, details of which are set out in the
circular dated 8 June 2018.

On 13 April 2021, in order to continue the existing
continuing connected transactions contemplated under
the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, the Company
entered into a financial services agreement (the “2021
Financial Services Agreement”) with CEC Finance to
reflect the terms of the proposed continuing connected
transactions and the proposed caps of the transactions
contemplated thereunder for the period commencing
from 1 July 2021 to 30 June 2024. Pursuant to the
2021 Financial Services Agreement, the financial
services to be provided by CEC Finance to the Group
includes deposit services, financial assistance and
fee-based or commission-based financial services.
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The 2021 Financial Services Agreement and the related
caps were approved by the independent shareholders
of the Company at the special general meeting held
on 29 June 2021, details of which are set out in the
circular dated 4 June 2021.

Pursuant to the 2018 Financial Services Agreement, the
maximum daily balance of deposits (together with the
interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB820 million and
the Group's actual balance of deposits (together with
the interests accrued thereon) with CEC Finance on any
given day during the six months ended 30 June 2021
had not exceeded such amount. For the provision of
financial assistance, the maximum amount of financial
assistance provided by CEC Finance to the Group shall
not exceed RMB820 million on any given day and the
actual balance of financial assistance provided by CEC
Finance on any given day during the six months ended
30 June 2021 had not exceeded such amount.

Pursuant to the 2021 Financial Services Agreement, the
maximum daily balance of deposits (together with the
interests accrued thereon) maintained by the Group
with CEC Finance shall not exceed RMB700 million
and the Group’s actual balance of deposits (together
with the interests accrued thereon) with CEC Finance
on any given day during the six months ended 31
December 2021 had not exceeded such amount. For
the provision of financial assistance, the maximum
amount of financial assistance provided by CEC Finance
to the Group shall not exceed RMB700 million on any
given day and the actual balance of financial assistance
provided by CEC Finance on any given day during the
six months ended 31 December 2021 had not exceeded
such amount.

In 2021, CEC has provided guarantees for certain
short-term bank borrowings of the Group for a
guarantee fee, and the Group did not provide any
counter security over the assets of the Group. As the
financial assistance received by the Group from CEC is
on normal commercial terms and is not secured by the
assets of the Group, this continuing connected
transaction is fully exempt under Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules.
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Save as disclosed above, all of the related party
transactions as disclosed in Note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

The above continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In the opinion of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company,
the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group, on normal commercial terms and were
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole.

Based on the results of the work performed on the
above continuing connected transactions, the auditor
of the Company has confirmed in its letter to the
Board that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that these continuing connected
transactions:

o have not been approved by the Board;

° were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the
transactions involve the provision of goods or
services by the Group;

o were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

o have exceeded the cap as disclosed in the
announcements.

B EXFmEES MR MBEHRRMEIE
BOAARB RS THEK ETRRNIE TS

ARRBUFRTEFTCENLARERER
7 RRABIBIUIFANTESTRA  LlFERE
RPGDAEERAEEBBREDIR —REHE
R UNRREZERD Z BB GITET - M
RPGERBRTFHNEE  WHFAARAREZE

825 -

BREE LR HEREXISIRTHIENER - K
REZBEERBRESTE Z KT R ML E
EEIEMZRAEMHRAREREWERS

s WAREEBEFSHME

o EXZHMAKBERHERIRE  EFE
ERTERERBAEE 2 EEBBRET:

s HEMAERTHREERREZFIHHME
FAmEET R

FH—

B AERBENLER -

44 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2021



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, the
following directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in businesses which compete or are
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group:
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RAFEARBERARERH  TIARAES
%Eiﬁﬁ%ﬁéﬁi$'§l%%ﬁ&&?ﬂﬂ%m F K
BB R XKD

Nature of

director’s interest

Principal business in the entity

Name of director Name of entity of the entity EENER

BEEps BERER BERZIEEHR ZRERNE

Dong Haoran Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman

EEN ERYER (M) of integrated circuits BEK
EXERRT LBGE

Shanghai Belling Corp., Ltd Design and manufacture Chairman

("Shanghai Belling”) (Note 1) of integrated circuits BEER

LBEERMNERAR
(TLBR&E] (Wit1)

RERRAT R BE

Yu Jian Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Chairman of the

E BB BEHE) of integrated circuits  supervisory committee
ERERRE REGE EER

Liu Jinmei Shanghai Belling (Note 1) Design and manufacture Director

251 LBBRERF) of integrated circuits Ex

SXER R RS
Note: Hist -
(1) CEC is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company. (1) SEEFEEARNAFZHEIERBE FHETEE

CEC is a state-owned nationwide electronics and information
technology conglomerate. These companies are subsidiaries
or associates of CEC and engaging in, or have subsidiaries or
associates engaging in, integrated circuits related businesses
which compete or are likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

The above mentioned competing businesses are
operated and managed by independent management
and administration. The Board exercises independent
judgment and is always acting for the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Accordingly,
the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the
competing businesses mentioned above.
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CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ PARTICULARS

Changes in particulars of the directors of the Company
since the date of the 2021 Interim Report required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules are set out below.

Mr. Qiu Hongsheng was appointed as an independent
director of GRINM Semiconductor Materials Co.,
Ltd and China Greatwall Technology Group Co., Ltd
(@ company with its shares listing on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) in May 2021 and September 2021,
respectively, and ceased to be an independent director
of AVIC Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd (a company with
its shares listing on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and
Wuhan Dameng Database Co., Ltd in September 2021
and December 2021, respectively.

Ms. Liu Jinmei was appointed as the chairman of
the supervisory committee of Beijing Chipadvanced
Technology Inc. (a company with its shares trading on
the National Equities Exchange and Quotations in the
PRC) in September 2021 and ceased to be a director of
Shanghai Belling (a company with its shares listing on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange) in October 2021.
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SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE
INTERESTS

At 31 December 2021, the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO showed
that the following persons (other than the directors
or chief executive of the Company) had notified the
Company that they had an interest of 5% or more in
the issued share capital of the Company:

Report of the Directors

EEGRE
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M2021512A318 - RIBEBEH R HAEKHIZE336
EAARBEFEZECMA R THALT( AR
AEEIZRETBRAERIN EMERARKE
BERRNRBEHEITRAS%KA E 2

Number of
shares held or
attributable Percentage
BEREL of shareholding
Name of interested party BERZERE R EE BERESHK
China Electronics Corporation  China Electronics Corporation 812,500,000 40.03%
(BVI) Holdings Company (BVI) Holdings Company
Limited (“CEC (BVI)") Limited ([ CEC (BVI)J)
Huada Semiconductor (Note 1) ZEX¥E8 (f/:771) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
CEC (Note 2) HEEFER (Ai22) 1,206,180,000 59.42%
Notes: Baz

(1) Huada Semiconductor holds 100% equity interest in CEC (BVI).
Pursuant to the SFO, Huada Semiconductor is deemed to be
interested in the 812,500,000 shares of the Company held by
CEC (BVI).

(2) CEC holds 100% equity interest in Huada Semiconductor.
Pursuant to the SFO, CEC is deemed to be interested in the
shares of the Company held by Huada Semiconductor. The
Board regards CEC, a state-owned enterprise established under
the laws of the PRC, as being the ultimate holding company of
the Company.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position
in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2021, the
Company had not been notified of any other interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws in Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares and the
Company had not redeemed any of its shares during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the aggregate
sales attributable to the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for 66% of the Group’s sales
for the year and sales attributable to the Group's
largest customer accounted for 21% of the Group's
sales for the year. For the year ended 31 December
2021, the aggregate purchases attributable to the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 69%
of the Group's purchases for the year and purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted
for 21% of the Group’s purchases for the year.

To the best knowledge of the Board, CEC is not a
beneficial owner of the five largest customers and is the
beneficial owner of one of the five largest suppliers of
the Group.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates or any shareholder (which
to the best knowledge of the Board owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or
suppliers.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2021 or
subsisted at 31 December 2021.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme
of the Group are set out in Notes 8 and 34 to the
financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report, the Company has purchased
and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract, other than employment contracts,
concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Group’s businesses
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31
December 2021.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Board, at the date of this report, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital are held by the
public and fulfills the requirement under the Listing
Rules.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations amounting
to HK$361,000 (2020: HK$338,000).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Board has reviewed the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Report of the Directors
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AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2021 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution will be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On 29 June 2020, the term of office of Ernst & Young
as the independent auditor of the Company expired.
On the same day, the shareholders resolved to appoint
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the independent auditor of
the Company. Details of the change of auditor are set
out in the announcement dated 30 March 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Haidong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in
Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China
Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 60 to 143, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2021;

e  the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended;

e  the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021,
and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are

summarised as follows:

Provision for expected credit losses of trade

receivables
Provision for inventories

KeggAtidit Matter
EiTEE

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables

ESREUNI BB EEERERE

Refer to notes 2.8.4 and 18 (b) to the consolidated
financial statements
B2HEE M B RANT2.8.4 % H5E18(b)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gross balance
of trade receivables was HK$618,864,000, against
which a provision for expected credit losses of
HK$82,580,000 was made

20215128318 - E5EE S EKFEBERES
%%m&%um%m TEHRBEHEEEER B
82,580,000/ 7T °

Provision for expected credit losses of trade
receivables reflects the management’s best estimate
to determine the expected credit losses. The estimate
requires significant management judgments in
determining the estimation method, in making
assumptions about the risk of default and expected
credit loss rates and in selecting data inputs for
calculating the expected credit loss provision.
BHRWHIBZ AR EEEREERNEREETR
HEEBRNKERE -ZHEFTEZEREFELERXR
#U%ﬁ BREVGENTE  BRENRRKEHRES
Fﬂaifﬁ““ﬁ’]ﬁﬁ#ﬂ%ﬂx& R ETREEEEERRE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BMNET N EERAREETSEE

Our procedures in relation to the provision for

expected credit losses of trade receivables included

the following:

T E SN R R E BB BRI 21 -

e We obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and assessment
process of provision for expected credit losses
of trade receivables and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of
other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias.
BMPTHTEEEHESERKWRIBNEREE
B 1R R ) AR R A BRI R BT R AR - LR
ZRMT T ETIENEE R EMEF R EE
BI7KSF - e - T B - B2EUARERER
MH BRI - fHE TEXRERNESRR -

e  We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the management’s estimation of the provision
for expected credit losses of trade receivables.
BARHEIAIE T AR EEE M E 5 BN RIE
IR B E B IE R Ar R -
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it Matter
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The assessment of expected credit loss provision
was an area of focus for us given the inherent
uncertainties and significant management judgments
involved in estimating the expected credit loss.
RHGEEEERERRMBINGE  RARHER

HEEFRBERTEER T HERARR S RERER
JE1E;.+

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BHNESF N MEEEARETSER

o We involved our internal modelling expert
in assessing and testing the method,
assumptions and data used in estimating
the provision for expected credit losses by
performing procedures such as (1) assessing
the appropriateness of the expected credit loss
provisioning model, including the grouping
of customers based on their shared credit risk
characteristics in determining the respective
historical loss rates, (2) testing, on a sample
basis, the accuracy of the aging profile of
trade receivables at the year-end to supporting
documents, (3) evaluating the estimation
method used in the context of the applicable
financial reporting framework, (4) testing
the significant data inputs and challenging
assumptions (including the current conditions
and future forecast of macroeconomic factors)
used by the management to estimate the
expected credit losses, (5) testing, on a sample
basis, the mathematical accuracy of calculation
of the expected credit losses.
EAHFBREERNHE T HFBRITTERFA
HHEI/HIJEKTﬁ””ﬁﬁm*%)&ﬁ@ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁﬁE’JE
% REREREBUE - HERR RS ()FHATERE
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HrefiEaEEER AN gt -

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgments and assumptions applied
in the assessment of provision for expected credit
losses of trade receivables were supportable by the
evidence obtained and procedures performed.
ERALERNET  BERNEAIBEAIFE
BEENHESRUFENEREEBEREDME
B F T K R AR e
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Provision for inventories

FREREE

Refer to note 2.10 and note 19 to the consolidated
fmanoal statements

BRHEAYERERMF2.10 %M 519

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s carrying
amount of inventories was HK$531,651,000, and
for the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised in cost of sales a reversal of provision for
inventories of HK$5,206,000.

R2021F12A31H  ESEGFEREHRER
531,651,000/ 7T » W& E2021F 1243180 IFFE
W EEECHEA/EEN AN EFERENELD R
5,206,000/ 7T °
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Finished goods and work in progress are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
estimation of provision for inventories involves
significant management judgments based on
consideration of key factors such as assessment of
the physical condition of the inventories, future sales
projection, and the estimation of the net realisable
value of the inventories.

JBE FX & 0 7E 2 qh 3% Ak A8 AN AT 8 3R A H B9 BUE & 7
T FEREBNTARMEBENREMRE - E%éi%
mEEREELS A - DEHESYIERERNT
it RRHERARFER SEFENMEE -

The assessment of provision for inventories was an
area of focus for us given the inherent uncertainties
and significant management judgments involved in
estimating the provision.
FEEGTESHRMBINGE  RERKEFER
BEEEETHEAZRSNEREREMET -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BHNESFT N MEEERETSER

Our procedures in relation to the provision for
inventories included the following:

T FERENIREREF 7

e We obtained an understanding of the
management’s internal control and assessment
process of provision for inventories and
assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias.
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e  We evaluated and tested the key controls over
the management’s estimation of the provision
for inventories.
%%f%lﬂﬂ%ﬁ?Eﬁﬁé’”‘éﬁ@ﬁéﬂ?ﬁﬁéﬁﬁ’ﬂ
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. We assessed and tested the method, assumptions
and data used in estimating the provision for
inventories by performing procedures such as
(1) observing physical condition of inventories,
on a sample basis, during stock take to identify
slow moving, damaged, or obsolete inventories,
and inquiring of management as to whether a
provision had been provided for those inventories,
(2) testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
the aging profile of inventories at the year-end
to supporting documents, (3) evaluating the
estimation method used in the context of the
applicable financial reporting framework, (4)
testing the significant data inputs and challenging
assumptions (including the determination of the
net realisable value of the inventories) used by
the management to estimate the provision, (5)
testing, on a sample basis, the mathematical
accuracy of calculation of the provision for

inventories.
WF? FHEARIE T R EREMFRERON A -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all
of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

56

How our audit addressed the Key Audit
Matter
BHNESF N MEEEARETSER

Based on the above, we considered that
management’s judgments and assumptions applied
in the assessment of provision for inventories
were supportable by the evidence obtained and
procedures performed.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

58

Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

ERB(EBENENETRIBED - M
EBRTERHALE R T ERIRREE - B

. a Bl AN RE A R A BRFF S BE AR T B BUAR & BE
BHRRFEEAHERBANEAR - Rt &
MITEEF AR ELRAR - JARER
TRMEEWETRE  EREMEAED
Hft - IRMFFAIRES M BR B &
BER ERRL  EBRAMIESZ
b FE REEH IR AR ME R E K
AR BR At Y L fea = T 2K BE 3 3R IR 85 3R T 8 2R
HY B K 5 AR PR L A LB

. TRREET BN ARES  URETEE
MBEAEF  BENLIFHEREAN =
HEAREERER -

. AEE=MRASBRRNREMERED
SEHEMEBEREN G -

. HEERAKEKLSERMNRE N
tEH R - IRIBPIERMETRE BT
EAGFEERFERABABANEKNTE
EME - EMAEEHY BEXRENKEL
LRNELERREE - WREMRBA/TFE
EANHEEN  RIALBBEEZEERE T
IRBEMAETIBREMBTHRER P A HRE I
o REABENBRESR  BIRMEEZ
FOFEBREER - RANGEWISERNZR
Bi¥RE A IEFTEVG R ERTRRE A - R
KEEHKIBFEAAVEEHERETEFEL

. AEREMBHRERNBEIIESN &
MAR BREEE UAREAMBHRRE
BRERBRIZHMER -
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o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Pai Hung On, Hendry.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

Independent Auditor’s Report
18 3 A% B AT =R
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

— = 372
meEBEK
Year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLLEFE
2021 2020
202145 20204
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
kA FHBT FHTT
Revenue A 5 1,681,654 1982 48556,
Cost of sales $H & AR 7 (1,111,122) (874,111)
Gross profit ER 570,532 450,445
Other income H b g A 6 33,529 36,153
Selling and marketing costs HE MG HEE KA 7 (83,002) (73,895)
Administrative expenses THAX 7 (388,115) (319,822)
Net reversal of impairment losses/ B 5 I H A e WO IE R (B
(impairment losses) on trade and EEFELD, CREEE)
other receivables 19 6,388 (11,690)
Operating profit & iE i Al 139,332 81,191
Finance income & WA 9 2,428 6,437
Finance costs A& K A 9 (29,256) (100,377)
Finance costs — net BLE AR — 55 9 (26,828) (93,940)
Share of results of associates JE(REE & N R EE 17 108 91,293
Loss on disposal of an associate s — e A 17 = (1,080,850)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BBLATRR (BE) 112,612 (1,002,306)
Taxation sl 10 14,707 (8,818)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEBF, (EHE) 127,319 (1,011,124)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERAN(FE)
attributable to: BEBR
Owners of the Company KABESFAEE 125,444 (1,013,263)
Non-controlling interests JEIZ I 2 1,875 2,139
127,319 (1,011,124)
Dividend BE 11 38,568 -
HK cents HK cents
B il
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREAXEF (FE) 12 6.18 (49.92)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

mEEHEBER

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A318LEE

2021 2020
20214 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit/(loss) for the year EEERAN(EE) 127,319 (1,011,124)
Other comprehensive income for AEEHBRHEREDN
the year, net of taxation: Ht 2 mEUE :
ltems that may be subsequently reclassified B geENBE R T
to profit or loss: S EERIER -
Exchange differences on translation of BREVBHRED
financial statements PE W =% 46,708 146,178
Release of accumulated translation reserves @y 25 E S FE - (1,196)
ltems that will not be subsequently reclassified Hi1& T 4EE 9 48 = % A
to profit or loss: HEBEMIER -
Exchange differences on translation of BRERQRFBRERD
financial statements of the Company PE W =% (12,400) (31,567)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZ2HKEHAE 161,627 (897,709)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2HEKGFHELE
attributable to: EER:
Owners of the Company KAFIEZEEE 159,331 (901,463)
Non-controlling interests FEZE AR = 2,296 3,754
161,627 (897,709)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B R R

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
2021128318 2020%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kt TR FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRE 13 51,004 43,784
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 14 56,331 63,059
Investment properties REME 15 53,491 51,494
Intangible assets B EE 16 55,947 35,849
Investment in associates REEE R RIRE 17 16,669 15,936
Trade and other receivables B 5 R EH A W FRIA 18 2,839 1,627
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 10 73,561 50,615
Time deposits EHER 22 244,618 -
554,460 262,364
Current assets REEE
Inventories "E 19 531,651 500,110
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H o e WL IE 18 747,651 542,355
Financial assets at fair value through BARBEFABZERHEE
profit or loss 20 10,886 15,403
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 21 517,932 465,411
Restricted cash XRERE 21 1,404 61,228
Time deposits EHER 22 477,006 715,368
2,286,530 2,299,875
Total assets EEARE 2,840,990 2,562,239
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

PN L
e BERRR
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021128318 2020%12A31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
h et FHET FET
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners RAAEZEEEEMN
of the Company e
Share capital and premium & AN K g (B 23 225,454 825,454
Reserves i (392,772) (651,237)
Retained earnings REEF 1,415,208 914,342
1,247,890 1,088,559
Non-controlling interests IR R 26,107 23,811
Total equity A 1,273,997 1,112,370
Liabilities as
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 24 27,441 37,935
Trade and other payables B 5 REM MR 25 7,577 15,936
Deferred tax liabilities RERIAEE 10 14,915 12,474
49,933 66,345
Current liabilities nREAE
Deferred government grants EEB T 26 59,211 58,454
Contract liabilities AHEE 34,968 11,760
Trade and other payables B 5 R H e IR 25 718,651 559,125
Bank and other borrowings BIIREMEE 27 672,701 712,300
Lease liabilities HEBE 24 31,429 29,132
Income tax payable FEAS TS T 5108 100 12,753
1,517,060 1,383,524
Total liabilities EEAE 1,566,993 1,449,869
Total equity and liabilities EERAELETE 2,840,990 2,562,239

The financial statements on pages 60 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors (the “Board”) on 28 March 2022 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Xu Haidong #FER

Director %

N FOEEF1MBEZTEREREEES ([E
&) R2022F3 828 # R IZETE - WA
THALTREREE

Liu Hongzhou 4T iM
Director %
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBER

Attributable to owners of the Company

AAARREEERL
Property Non-
Share Share Surplus ~ Translation  revaluation Merger Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total interests equity
R&  ROEE  BRER EXRE NREGBE  GMRE  RMEE  REW 8% FEBRE  BR4E

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§ 000
ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL T ThL ThL ThL T

oe23) Moies 3and (@) (Wote ) (Note )

W) Wke) () (Wita)

At 1 January 2020 20051818 20,299 805,155 37,105 (69,735) 28,9% (13 121) 715) 1,962,131 2,036,709 20,057 2,056,766

Total comprehensive income 2AkELE - - - 111,800 - - - 1,013,203 (901,463) 3754 (897,709)

Disposal of an associate HE-HEELT - - - - (12,161) - - 12161 - - -

Pamentof didend RiRs - - - - - - S e ese) - )

At 31 December 2020 20205126318 20299 805,155 37,705 42,065 16,835 (13 121) ,715) 914342 1,088,559 BRI 1112370

At 1 January 2021 H00E1A18 20,299 805,155 31,705 42,005 16,835 (143,121) (4115) 91430 1,088,559 B/ 1112370

Total comprehensie income 2ENELE - - - 33887 - - - 125,444 159,331 229 161,627

Transfer of share premium to contibuted supls BB RAEEZEHRE - (600,000) - - - - 600,000 - - - -

Himination of accumulated losses of the Company ~ HEARAZHES - - - - - - (3903) 389035 - - -

Loss on dissolution of  subsidiary FHNBLTBE - - - 13613 - - - (13613) - - -

At 31 December 2021 H2021E128318 20,299 205,155 37,705 89,565 16,835 (13.121) 206,250 1,415,208 1,247,890 26,107 1213991

(@ At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 29 (@) F2021F6A29BBHMARTRRAEFAE - K
June 2021, a resolution was passed by the shareholders of ARARRBH-BEARAZRUAMERRE RE1981F
the Company to approve an amount of HK$600,000,000 NEVER AR MAEIR ARG RO SBRZERSE
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the 600,000,000/ 7T * W AHEEE Z#EREREARARQT
Company be reduced in accordance with the Companies Act EMBEEAZESAGER  RHBEMABERMBEARD
1981 of Bermuda and the bye-laws of the Company, and that RIM2020% 12 A31H 2 251 /E18££389,035,000% 7T °
the credit arising therefrom be transferred to the contributed
surplus account (included in “Other reserve”) of the Company
where it was utilised to eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Company at 31 December 2020 totaling HK$389,035,000.

(b)  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC, a (by BEEEFEDRAERLASE  AAFRFPEZHEAFRN
portion of the profits of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries has O EFEEREFRAEIRONCEERESRFEEES
been transferred to the enterprise expansion fund and reserve =3I
fund (the “Surplus reserve”) which are restricted as to use.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
M it FERT FAET
Cash flows from operating EETHCRERE
activities
Cash flows generated from LEEECHERE
operations 28 168,573 282,868
Interest paid S E (29,403) (99,389)
Income tax paid SIS (16,050) (9,051)
Net cash flows generated from LBERBELE
operating activities ZBREeREFE 123,120 174,428
Cash flows from investing REZHZRERE
activities
Interest received W B R B 22,142 15,749
Purchase of property, plant and BEME  BEK&FZE -
equipment, and intangible assets MmEpEE (74,955) (26,098)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEWZ*  BEX
plant and equipment R FTISIE 20,198 13,145
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERARBEF AR
assets at fair value through TRBEEMSHIE
profit or loss 5,105 =
Increase in time deposits TE 8315 5K 2 38 A0 (6,256) (264,374)
Dividends received W HR AR 2 787 63,757
Proceeds from disposal of e — A& QRIS IE
an associate - 1,779,737
Net cash flows (used in)/generated K’EES(FFR) /ELx
from investing activities ZREeREFEE (32,979) 1,581,916
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLFE

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash flows from financing METHZ2RERE
activities
Proceeds from bank and RITREMBEEMESKIE
other borrowings 590,364 1,844,746
Repayment of bank and BEBRITRAMBEES
other borrowings (650,003) (3,375,565)
Dividend paid AT R - (46,687)
Principal portion of lease payments HENZKE B H (26,922) (23,127)
Increase in restricted cash PR HI3R & 2 80 = (59,408)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BEESAZ
R mEFRE (86,561) (1,660,041)
Net increase in cash RekBE£ESEYEM
and cash equivalents FE 3,580 96,303
Effect of exchange rate changes EXEgH o8 48,941 18,889
Cash and cash equivalents at FzBHeRREEEY
beginning of the year 465,411 350,219
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZEESRESEEY
end of the year 517,932 465,411
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited
(the "Company”) is incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability. The
Company has its shares listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the Company’s
registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The ultimate holding company of the Company is
China Electronics Corporation Limited (“CEC"), which
is established in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC").

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the design and sale of
integrated circuit chips.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1. —REH

PEEFEARMEBERAA(TARA] A—
FMRAHESHEETMAY TREREEBLE
WERBEEAR - ARAIRNEBEBHERS
FTERARA LM ARAMFEMREEMU A
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda °

ARBZBEERARATHETEEEXEH
BERAR(HEEFEE]D (—ERFEARK
B (THRBE DRI ZEE)

AARREMBAR (AEENMHEBLBRE
BRI 2 R R -

BRRBEAIN  REAPBRERIABTTIIR

2. EXRSHEHEBE

ARGV BRRAKRAN T ZSABRET
WR-BRRBERN EFBR-—EEREAR
FMIEZ2MIFE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with HKFRSs, HKASs,
Interpretations and Listing Rules

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. These consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention as modified by
the revaluation of investment properties and certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs, HKASs and Interpretations
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

2.1 mEEE

(a) NEBBHMBEHEEER  BEEER
a2BR_EmAA

RAVBRRDOBREBESTHAGRM A
BERNBEEMBREEL ([BEMBREE
A1) - BAGHER(EHBSTER]) k2B
e ZERBVBRRTETERBRAR S
BRAREZ EMAR ([ EWARA]) RBERT]
OIS 2 BRIFERT - HKEMBHREREKE
ERAEREmE ARREDERETRAA
B ABRERMEE (RAAEBIR) OERBMIE
HER] °

RAUNTABTEVBMEER  EEGHELN LR
BHNGEAVHBRACHE THERS;ES &
BEEEAASENS T BRBRETNATERE
HIET - BAGRAMBHRERM S P MR H B HE
MMNEE S REERBORKR LG &
FfaEasP R EE -

J;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

In the current year, the Group has adopted for the first
time of all the new or amended HKFRSs and HKASs,
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to the
Group's operations and effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 January 2021. The adoptions of
these new or amended standards and interpretations
had no material effect on the results and financial
position of the Group and/or disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.

The following amendments to standards that are
relevant to the operation of the Group have been
issued but are not effective for the accounting period
beginning on 1 January 2021 and have not been early
adopted:

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

21 wAEEE(E)

(b) FralER| - EAIEET R 2

AEERAFECEHERXRNB BT ASHMRA
o2 PR AN B RSB ) X20214F1 A1H R
M2 BT HIRARZ AT HEIERT 2 BBM B
SEAMEFB SRR - RBRE - RAZFHF]
HBIEFT 2 ERI R 2R - WAKEZ X8 MK
RRAR/ SR E B RRASE 2 WELEEKR

B/ 488
=

DEMEMARR2021F1 B1BBB 2 @8R4
MBWARIWIRER PN BAEBESHRE 2 KR
BT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R ERMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(b) New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (Cont’d)

HKFRS 3 (amendments)

HKAS 16
(amendments)

HKAS 37
(amendments)

Accounting Guideline 5
(Revised)

HKAS 1 (amendments)

HKAS 1 (amendments)

HKAS 8 (amendments)

HKAS 12
(amendments)

HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28
(amendments)

Reference to the conceptual
framework (effective from 1
January 2022)

Proceeds before intended use
(effective from 1 January 2022)

Cost of fulfilling a contract
(effective from 1 January 2022)

Merger accounting for common
control combinations (effective
from 1 January 2022)

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current (effective from 1
January 2023)

Disclosure of accounting policies
(effective from 1 January 2023)

Definition of accounting estimates
(effective from 1 January 2023)

Deferred tax related to assets and
liabilities from a single transaction
(effective from 1 January 2023)

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and
its associate or joint venture
(effective date not yet determined
but available for adoption)

Management anticipates that the adoption of the
above amendments to standards will have no material
effect on the results and financial position of the

Group.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

21 HwUEE(E)

ERIEET R FE (&)

(b) FralERl -

BB MEERNEINR
SCHD

FE G ERE165
(£%T)

%? Eﬂ+/
(f£&7)
@atiE 3l 5% (1B5])

B 585375%

FFF

BB ERE 1R
1)

B gRTERIZE 5]

BB HREER

FI0H B AED
FHERI 2855
(1&%7)

2EBSNER
(B2022%F1A1H
A3

B E BB RIMFTTS
K (B20225F1A1
B4 )

BAIKA (820224
1B1H# LK)
HEZEH T HE G
KAMEHEE
(B2022%1A1H8
HE A )

ETE%M/}ILEU&%?E/}ILQ
215 (B202341A4
1TB#RER)

SEBRMNEE
(B2023%F1A81H
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Elu 13;:##])3%
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HE-—QXZFEENE
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EREHERA (EX
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity.

The subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year will be included in the consolidated financial
statements from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal (except for
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control
which are accounted for using the principles of merger
accounting), as appropriate.

Apart from the application of merger accounting
on common control combination, the acquisition
method of accounting is used to account for business
combination by the Group. The consideration
transferred for an acquisition is the fair values of
the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Any
contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset
or liability are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Acquisition-related
transaction costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets.

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

2.2 #%LREERHE
(a) 1 /8 2> 7]

r\

8 2 B4 B AR SR B E Bl 0 T R B (B HE G 18
B  EASEAZ2AERENZEMESIEE
BEEHAEDE  AHE ﬁLﬂEﬂEﬁ‘f )
ERERRMOSRE  AIASEZEHZER

m =3
]

0

REARMBBREENHEQR KB WEBERA
s EEREEME B RBERME) 5T AL
& B R (HE K RHE 6 T W s 2 B 8 2 R 3R
Ao EERAARES) -

B8 HRZES TR A HERAEHFEFHEIN - B
AT REARBEB A HOART A - B
M ERENZZEHMETEE  AEHEK
B ZRRaRAEMEENRBERAEE#T
BAESNAAENE FEENHERREXE
HERHMELENERNEEXRENAAE K
SEREENEMNREHEREERBNAAE
ATE - WRAREXRBNAAHEL R EHE
B2 ERESRTHER - DESESNIEY
EFNEHFE HZBRNEEEREDT AR -
AXZRBRNARELERERSEM HEXHBA
PrRPTIE B A BRI B E A M PTAEN R B Rk
BRE wEEREFREBEEHNQAERE-
SAERWE  WEEEMS - AEERRARE
i IR I MR s PR R R B T AT SR O B R
BRI D] - St ERUEE T /O SEIE G 1R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

The excess of the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the aggregate of consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree is less than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary in the
consolidated financial statements to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses in the Company’'s
statement of financial position. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent of
dividend received and receivable.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amount
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination

Merger accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries under common control by the
Group.

Under merger accounting, the consolidated financial
statements incorporate the financial statements of
the combining entities or businesses in which the
common control combination occurs as if they had
been combined from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of
the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are combined using the existing book values from
the controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is
recognised in consideration for goodwill or excess of
acquirers’ interest in the net fair value of acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over cost at the time of common control combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss includes
the results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented or since the
date when the combining entities or businesses first
came under common control, whichever is shorter and
regardless of the effective date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous statement of
financial position dates or when they first came under
common control, whichever is shorter.

A uniform set of accounting policies is adopted by
those entities. All intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
combining entities or businesses are eliminated on
consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(c) Common control combination (Cont’d)

Transaction costs, including professional fees,
registration fees, costs of furnishing information to
shareholders, costs or losses incurred in combining
operations of the previously separate businesses, etc.,
incurred in relation to the common control combination
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

The difference between the share capital of entities
combined and the fair value of consideration paid has
been recorded in the merger reserve in the consolidated
financial statements.

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the
acquisition of the ownership interest in an associate,
any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted
for as goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)
(d) Associates (Cont’d)

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in the statement
of comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment.
When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
to “share of result of associates” in the statement of
profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Company has adopted HK$ as its presentation currency
because the management considered it is more
beneficial to the users of the consolidated financial
statements.

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (“functional currency”).

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.3

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

income and expenses for each statement of profit
or loss and statement of comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their costs over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

— Buildings and leasehold  5-20 years

improvements (or over the lease term,
whichever is shorter)
— Plant and machinery 5-10 years
— Motor vehicles 5-10 years
— Furniture and fixtures 5 years

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)

24 YE- -BERRE

WX BB RREEESLKARITEMRERR
‘IR - ELRABRWEZAR BEREHZH
Sl

BECERBEZARARAEREARZRRE
BEMEAGRAERIRERAREEIL B LA S EH
AER e ABRERAEXER S BB
BERFBERME) ° A EMEERRBKAN
EEEAZHMBHREARGRIEERH -

ME BEMRBZITETDANBRETE  BH
EEAEAFRAIEXES  EEYE  BE MR
BTl ERFERMT

- BFLEAEMEREE S5%220F  HEHFH

(ABME & B%)
- E R 52104
- H@ 5& 104
- BEKREE 54F

78 China Electronics Huada Technology Company Limited Annual Report 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
(Cont’d)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
statement of financial position date.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals or retirement are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised within
“other income” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Construction in progress represents the direct
costs of construction incurred in property less any
impairment losses. No provision for depreciation is
made on construction in progress until such time that
the relevant assets are completed and available for
use. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

2.5 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and is not occupied
by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
properties. Land held under operating leases are
accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are
accounted for as if they were finance leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and, where
applicable, borrowing costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such
as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Investment property that is
being redeveloped for continuing use as investment
property or for which the market has become less active
continues to be measured at fair value. Changes in fair
values are recognised within “other income” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in
light of current market conditions. The fair value also
reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that could
be expected in respect of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is
under construction or development for future use
as investment property is classified as investment
property under construction. Where fair value of
investment properties under construction is not reliably
measurable, the property is measured at cost until the
earlier of the date construction is completed or the date
at which fair value becomes reliably measurable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.5 Investment properties (Cont’d)

If an item of owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying
amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised as a revaluation. The resulting
increase in the carrying amount is recognised in other
comprehensive income and as increases in property
revaluation reserve within equity. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, and the remaining part of the increase
is recognised in other comprehensive income and as
increases in property revaluation reserve within equity.
Decreases in fair value of the investment property
against the previous carrying amount are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss for any decrease in
excess of the amount included in revaluation surplus for
that investment property.

2.6 Intangible assets

Computer software

Acquired computer software licences are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific software. These costs are amortised
over their estimated useful lives of one to five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.7 Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows which are largely independent
of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each statement
of financial position date.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.8 Financial assets
2.8.1  Classification

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.

2.8

2.8.1

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont'd)
Classification (Cont’d)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost
if both of the following conditions are met:

(b)

The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of holding financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

The financial asset is held within a business
model with the objective of both holding
financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows and selling.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)

2.8.1 Classification (Cont’d)
(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through
profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to
be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified
as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income, as
described above, debt instruments may be designated
at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition
if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an
accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.2  Recognition and derecognition

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics and the Group’s business model
for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in
the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
are measured at the transaction price determined in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and either the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset or the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the financial asset, but has transferred
control of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.3 Subsequent measurement
(a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
computed in the same manner as for financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value
changes are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled
to the statement of profit or loss.

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently measured at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.4 Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.
The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12 month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost
or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.4 Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

For debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Group applies the low
credit risk simplification. At each reporting date, the
Group evaluates whether the debt investments are
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable
and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation, the
Group reassesses the external credit ratings of the debt
investments.

The Group may consider a financial asset is
credit-impaired when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general
approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly since
initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont’d)
2.8.4 Impairment (Cont’d)
General approach (Cont’d)

Stage 3 — Financial instruments that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired)
and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

2.9 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables,
other payables, and bank and other borrowings.

2.9.1 Recognition and derecognition

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)

28 SWMEE(E

2.84 JH1E (%)

— ik (4E)

BEEE= — RBREBHAEERE(EILIEEE
K VEERE) MIRERNE2HE
HEEEBRzcRATEEEREZ
SFTHE-

L%

AT EEEAREAKBHXEASEREEM
THEEAREAKBN 2R EZE 5 RBK
B E ARERFERREEBRRERGL
& o REBEZ B - NEE I BB HHE B R R
B RMRERSANRE2HAREEBE
BREREE AKECRIUBRBAKEBEE
ERERRIENBREEE  YREBAKEDN
RIEERRRQERRIEHRAE -

29 SHERE

ERMABERBNERAREIBSERREE - 3
ENRAE(EBRME) -

g

AEENETRABEEREZRMNFIA - HiEM
HIE - MIBITREMEER -

2.9.1 AR AR I R
FESRABERVEAREERARMAER LE
FARFEARE AENREZEEERIZHA -

EHEEAKENAETERK BUEXE 2 H
B AAKEBUEERSREBE - BUEBRN S
BEEREERENRENEENZEINER
R HER ©

FEETEANKERAA 202155HK 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial liabilities (Cont’d)
2.9.2 Subsequent measurement
Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

2.9.3 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.10 Inventories

Finished goods and work in progress are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises design costs, raw materials, direct labour,
manufacturing cost of subcontractors, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less applicable variable
selling expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
short-term time deposits with banks and other
financial institutions and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or
less.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
share options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

2.13 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair values
where there is a reasonable assurance that the
government grant will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions. Government grant
relating to an asset is included in non-current liabilities,
which is credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected
useful life of the related asset. Government grant
relating to an expense item is deferred and recognised
as income in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period necessary to match with the cost
that it is intended to compensate.

2.14 Current and deferred taxation

The taxation expense comprises current and deferred
taxation. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
statement of financial position date in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred taxation differences
(i) Inside basis differences

Deferred taxation is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, the deferred taxation is not recognised
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred taxation is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the statement of financial
position date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14 Current and deferred taxation
(Cont’d)

(b) Deferred taxation differences (Cont’d)
(i) Outside basis differences

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally
the Group is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates. Only when there is
an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in
the foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax
assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow of resources will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow of resources with
respect to any one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

2.16 Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for the eligible employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
— administered funds. The Group’s contributions to MPF
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC have to
make contribution to staff retirement scheme managed
by local government authorities in accordance with the
relevant rules and regulations. Contributions to these
schemes are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as and when incurred. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions.

(b) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonuses is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation for payment of bonus as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.17 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not provided for as a provision
but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
When a change in the probability of an outflow of
resources occurs so that the outflow is probable, they
will then be recognised as a provision.

2.18 Revenue recognition
(a) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. When the consideration
in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it
is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in
the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Revenue from
transferring of goods or services is recognised at the
point in time when control of the asset is transferred to
the customer, generally on acceptance of the goods by
customers or where contract provides a product quality
inspection time period, the product quality inspection
time period has lapsed. The Group considers that the
control of asset is transferred to the customer at the
end of the quality inspection time period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(b) Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods
or services to a customer for which the Group has
received a consideration (or an amount of consideration
that is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

(c) Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Leases
(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Unless the
Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated
useful life and the lease term.

2. EXRSHEHRBEGE)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.20 Leases (Cont’d)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease and are measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments
less any lease incentives receivable. As the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable,
the Group’ s incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date is used to calculate the present
value of lease payments. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the interest on the leases liabilities and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification or a change in the lease term.

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value asset

For lease with a term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and does not contain a purchase
option (“short-term lease”) and lease of asset that are
considered to be of low value (“lease of low-value
asset”), lease payments are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

2. EXRSTHHRBEGE)
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2.21

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development

costs

that are directly attributable to the design and

testing of identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met:

it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;

it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development of the software
product are available; and

the expenditure attributable to the software
product during its development can be reliably
measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the software product cost includes employee costs for
software development and an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Costs associated with maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.21 Research and development costs
(Cont’d)

Other development costs that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Computer software development costs recognised as
assets are amortised using straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives, which does not exceed
three years.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company's
shareholders or the Board, where appropriate.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's operations expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, and
cash flow and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. Management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The foreign exchange risks of the Group occurred
due to the fact that the Group had some business
activities denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group’s business activities are primarily exposed to
foreign exchange risk in respect of Hong Kong dollars
against RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. In addition, the
conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

To manage its foreign exchange risk arising from future
commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilities, the Group uses forward contracts, when
appropriate, to hedge anticipated cash flows in major
foreign currencies.

If Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/weakened by
5% against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit before taxation for the year ended 31
December 2021 would have been HK$508,000 lower/
higher (2020: the loss before taxation would have
been HK$3,414,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains or losses on translation of Hong
Kong dollars denominated cash and cash equivalents,
and bank and other borrowings.

As less than 10% of the Group’s foreign currency
transactions are denominated in other foreign
currencies, the Board is of the view that foreign
exchange risk in relation to transactions denominated
in other foreign currencies is low. Therefore, no
sensitivity analysis for these currencies is presented.

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from interest-bearing
assets such as deposits held in banks and other
financial institutions. The average interest rate of
deposits held in banks and other financial institutions
at 31 December 2021 was 2.7% (2020: 2.2%) per
annum. Any change in the interest rate from time to
time is not considered to have a significant impact on
the Group’s performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(b) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Cont’d)

In addition, the Group's interest rate risk which affects
its results and operating cash flows also arises from
interest-bearing liabilities such as bank and other
borrowings. The bank and other borrowings were at
fixed rates and exposed the Group to fair value interest
rate risk. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, all the
Group’s bank and other borrowings were borrowed at
fixed interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties failure to perform their
obligations at the end of each reporting period in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets net of loss
allowance as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk,
management of the Group has formulated a defined
credit policy and delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other control procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

At 31 December 2021, the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment of trade receivables measured
at amortised cost. See Note 18 for the measurement
of ECLs and impairment provision of trade receivables.
For financial assets such as trade receivables measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
other receivables, time deposits, and cash and cash
equivalents, they are classified within stage 1 for
measurement of ECLs as there is no significant increase
in credit risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management, including
maintaining sufficient working capital, the availability
of funding through an adequate amount of committed
borrowing facilities and the ability to close out market
positions, is adopted. Due to the dynamic nature of the
underlying businesses, the Group maintains flexibility
in funding by ensuring that sufficient committed
borrowing facilities are available.

Details of the Group’s financial liabilities by maturity
groupings analysed based on the remaining period
at the statement of financial position date to the
contractual maturity date are set out below. The
amounts disclosed in the table are based on the
contractual undiscounted cash flows of the financial
liabilities.

3. M¥EREREEE)
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@  EBESER
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31 December 2021

20215124318
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but
less than less than
2 years 5 years
Within 1year —FL LB —ENE Total
-  THBE-F BrEBLSF Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 694,982 - - 694,982
Lease liabilities HERE 33,474 16,938 11,867 62,279
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR FIE
(excluding salary and welfare (TEERMNFHEMEH
payables and other taxes REA B HIR)
payables) 639,965 7,577 - 647,542
1,368,421 24,515 11,867 1,404,803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

3.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. WMBERERZ)
(Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 B¥RERBEEE)
(d) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (d) HEE 2B (&)
31 December 2020
2020912 A318
More than More than
1 year but 2 years but
less than less than
2 years 5 years
Within 1 year  —EL F{B —ERE Total
—FR  TEBA-F BRERATF B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET ThET
Bank and other borrowings BIREMEE 732,122 = = 732,122
Lease liabilities HEBE 31,835 21,748 18,915 72,498
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M ENFIE
(excluding salary and welfare (TRERMNFH2MEH
payables and other taxes REMEMAFIE)
payables) 496,064 - 15,936 512,000
1,260,021 21,748 34,851 1,316,620
3.2 Capital risk management 3.2 EXEBERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through
the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior

years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts,
which includes bank and other borrowings, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

AEEEAENEERERRAEE Y BRET
SEEE BB ESRERESAERR
B AR B3R o 7 o B B R (R 4 L A
R — -

AEBEZENGEBBRER (BRERITAEME
B) RARPHEmFAERIGER -

FEETEANKAERAA 2021FF®K 105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.2 Capital risk management (Cont’d)

The Group monitors capital risk using a gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and time
deposits. Total capital is calculated as equity, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position, plus
net debt.

The calculation of the Group’s gearing ratios were
based on the following data:

3. UXREREEGE)

3.2 EXEREE(E)

AEERAEARBHEREREARRAR ° IR
THABETE R R ABE N E - EF5FRIRE
ERFERRELRSEEY  IRBIREMNE DR
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2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAETT

Bank and other borrowings (Note 27) SRITREMEE (Hit27) 672,701 712,300

Lease liabilities (Note 24) MEAE KiF24) 58,870 67,067
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B -BReRBEEFEYD

(Note 21) (Brat21) (517,932) (465,411)

Restricted cash (Note 21) SIRHIIRE (Aft21) (1,404) (61,228)

Time deposits (Note 22) EHTFER (B a222) (721,624) (715,368)

Net (cash) (BRe)F5 (509,389) (462,640)

Total equity B 1,273,997 1,112,370

Total capital BREER 1,273,997 1,112,370

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
Group was in net cash position. In the opinion of the
Board, the Group’s capital risk is not significant.

3.3 Fair value estimation

Financial instruments measured at fair value are
grouped into Levels 1 to 3, based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable, as follows:

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F 12 A31H L FE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont’d)

3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (ie prices) or indirectly (ie
derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation methods that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Movements in the investment properties that are
measured at fair value during the year are set out in
Note 15. Movements in the financial assets that are
measured at fair value during the year are set out
below.

3. HMBEABREREE)

3.3 2QREME(E)

s FARAREFEDRE-RABEZIHRE
9|\ EESE_JZEE—JE&(EHFW)‘RW&
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REENRABEHEZ REYME Y BHRNHE
15 REFUALBHEZ S BEEZ ZHEF
M

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Wealth management products M EERER E—& B B=& CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FTET

At 1 January 2020 #2020F181H = 9,515 4,627 14,142
Exchange differences BN ZE5E - 625 304 929
Changes in fair value NREE - 228 104 332
At 31 December 2020 #2020%F12H31H = 10,368 5,035 15,403
At 1 January 2021 ®20215181A - 10,368 - 10,368
Exchange differences BN ERE - 308 - 308
Additions s ill - 210 - 210
At 31 December 2021 ®2021%F12H31A - 10,886 - 10,886

At 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
time deposits, restricted cash, trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments) less loss allowance
for impairment, bank and other borrowings, and trade
and other payables (excluding non-financial liabilities)
approximated their fair values due to their short
maturities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS

4.1 Provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required
for obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group
would evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and
compare the carrying amount of inventories to their
respective net realisable value. Judgement is required
in determining such allowances. If conditions which
have impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

4.2 Income tax and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income tax in different
jurisdictions. Estimation and judgment is required in
determining the amount of the provision for income
tax. There are transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recognised, such differences
will impact on the income tax and deferred taxation
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

According to the relevant regulations of the corporate
income tax laws of the PRC, when a foreign investment
enterprise in the PRC distributes dividends out of
the profits earned from 1 January 2008 onwards to
its overseas investors, such dividends are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%. During the year,
the Board reassessed the dividend policy of its major
foreign investment enterprise in the PRC, CEC Huada
Electronic Design Co., Ltd (“Huada Electronics”) based
on the Group’s current business plan and financial
position, estimated that certain earnings generated
by Huada Electronics will be eventually distributed out
of the PRC and as such, deferred tax liabilities in this
respect was provided in the year to the extent that such
earnings are estimated by the Board to be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

No deferred tax liability has been provided by the
Group for the earnings of HK$873,318,000 (2020:
HK$799,324,000) expected to be retained by the
subsidiaries in the PRC and not to be distributed out of
the PRC in the foreseeable future.

4. FEZGHETTRAE

41 FERE

BERENFHTEMTNRESHER  A&E
SHEFENRESN Y BFENKRAESR
HEEBMAZRFE BEEZSHBERFELH
b - MRBEFEAERFEAZENBERRL -
AIRER R INB AR o

42 FBHRIELZERE

AKEERTRBDAERBMAED - REEFT
SHERB 2ER - FELMGE RHE - KA
FEBERPHFERS MFEHHARTEERR
ZMBETE - Mz FFRIEZRBBHFERERIN
AR TR REERNBERYERZM
BREEEHARBELETE -

REFBECRABPENEREBRTE  FREANZ
SRR B DEABRE R EEINGEE 7 B 2008
FIATRBELENRN  ZFREAZMI0%H
BHMAEH NAFR  EFENAKERE
EBF B LM BIRER AR T 2R BEEAIN
BRECEIERPEEREFRITAREETAF
(EREFDHREBE B EXETFELN
ETHENSREDEEPEIRIN - Fitt - UNER
SEFARAERBR BN ENRER - RAF
A RN IR B EE LB -

AEBUERTEHRATFEMBARNRBEETER
A8 B R 2R o B2 H AR B3R 4 & 58 /£873,318,000
7 7T (20204F : 799,324,0005% 7T ) B 3% ) B 18 1
EFHIEEE -
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.3 Provision for expected credit losses
of trade receivables

Except for certain trade receivable from customers
with specific credit risk that management adopts an
individual impairment assessment approach, the Group
uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on the past
due days for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (ie by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (ie gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in Note 18 to the
financial statements.

4. FEGHETIRHE(F)

43 EBFRVWFEEHFEBERE

RERERETRANERECERRBEENE
5 1 Yo SOR IR AR BURE ST 7 45D - R B
PR A £ S 5 R KO PO T BB B AR
S BB B ER S TREE RS (1
BIE - ESEY - BEREARFR) 2 DAMA
BitH -

BRERESNERASENELBRENE - K
SESEBHEMEEN ARABELEEBEL
B M AERERE o filgn - AR RTEB A9 AR R (BNEY
ANEERE) BERR—FAR(L  EAEER
BAOBEEN BREHRESRAE - EBR
TH EBEXBERIMEORBEREN - LD
RIRE A ET R B 1L -

HELEBRINNEHR - TR KM M T
EEEE ENERENTHEE -—BEERNG
it BHEEFBRNSBEERRNE(CRIRAN
RBERARER - AKRENELEFEBERERNK
BEEMRR TR b ] BB EAR R AR TN E
REABR - ARASEE S REFEANTAHIE
EEEMNERBRBER B RERMEI8 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGMENTS (Cont’d)

4.4 Fair value of investment properties

During the year, the Board assessed the principal
assumptions underlying management’s estimation
of fair value of investment properties of the Group.
The fair value of investment properties are assessed
annually by an independent qualified professional
valuer. The valuation is principally based on direct
comparison method by taking into account the terms of
the existing leases and other external evidence such as
current market rents or sales evidence for similar types
of properties in the locality, and using capitalisation
rates that reflect current market expectation for
the assets being valued. The valuation methods and
significant assumptions of investment properties are
disclosed in Note 15.

4.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the statement
of financial position date. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions which are on
an arm’s length basis of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management has to estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

4. FEEHETTRAE(E)

4.4 KREVELAAE

FA EFSTHEEBHAREREVERA
BfEFAZEERR REVEZAAEESFAMH
BUYAREREXRGEMELTME ZEEZER
RERLBE  2ZRBAN 2GR EMLINE
BE (RIS RARRNE 2 REmEES
SHERD UERRREAHEECEEZRE
MR ER L REFE) REVMERZMAE
TERERBREMEI1SFRE -

45 FEMEERE

REER %W#R%H%&ﬁ%ﬁ#iﬂﬁ?m
BEEMRBEDNR - B8P RET ARSI E 3E
TREENREER - BETRENR - BESF
ERE - HEAEX —EREELEMNREER
BERWEEER - TREEEAEARERE
EXRFEEGTHAEENRSE c AR BEREHEX
ADLERABREEARTFEENEARNEER
SHAEEBEXABEEMSERALEEENE
Eﬁ\zzlgu-l_é ° éi@@ l:l“— 1%%{51557 ’ //\1$El+§
%&Eﬁﬁgiﬁ{iE’]%E\E-I—%;KEE%UILE EIA
ERMBAEUGFEZSZHESRENIRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

5. WA K2 E8E %

INFORMATION
(a) Revenue (@) WA
Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT F& T
Sale of integrated circuit products HEEKERE R 1,681,654 1,324,556

All the revenue of the Group is from sale of goods,
which is recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods is transferred to the customers.

(b) Segment information

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the Board (the chief
operating decision maker) that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The Board assesses
the performance of an operating segment based on a
measure of its operating profit excluding unallocated
corporate income and expenses.

The Board considers that the Group’s operations
are operated and managed as a single segment and
accordingly, no segment information is presented.

Revenues of HK$353,350,000, HK$284,348,000
and HK$252,121,000 (2020: HK$373,222,000,
HK$225,583,000, HK$184,946,000 and
HK$138,444,000), respectively, derived from 3 (2020:
4) external customers of the Group have exceeded 10%
of the revenue of the Group. Save as disclosed herein,
no revenue derived from a single external customer has
exceeded 10% of the revenue of the Group.

Nearly 100% of the Group’s revenue is attributable
to the market in the PRC and over 90% of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC. No
geographical information is therefore presented.

AEERMANBRARBHEESER  NIRBERD
ZHIEER EEENRRER

(b) ZoHBESHR

EEECREEFRS (ZBLERRE) CEHNE
AHERAEDEERANHRE  BHELE ‘ﬁli
E=ZgRBELENMZEE DN (TEBERD

B R B R B ) AT E R IR o

EXEeARAEBEZEBIUE
2 WA EBE D BER -

DRIREAER 238 (20209F : 4%) INAE
% 5 #(353,350,000/8 JT * 284,348,000/8 7T
%252,121,0005% 7T (20204 : 373,222,000/%
JC * 225,583,000/ 7T * 184,946,000/ 7T &
138,444,000 ) W ABBAEBR KA Z
10% c RAXFTHBEESI - WEEMKEE—H
RBEZRABBAEEKRAZ10% °

AEEEIIT100% 2 RARERFPEMISEBG
0% ZIFRBEEMNPE » R EREME T
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

6. OTHER INCOME

6. HaA

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Government grants B 7 B 8,057 21,100
Fair value gains on financial assets BAREFAER

at fair value through profit or loss EMEEAABERE 985 332

Gain on modification of lease 1B &l = 5 863

Interest income B U A 20,161 1 522

Rental income el A 2,604 2,432

Others HAth 1,717 304

33,529 36,153

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and
marketing costs and administrative expenses are

analysed as follows:

7. BEMHEASZEHR
DIESHEE A « R B B AT R X
ZERAMMT :

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T
Depreciation and amortisation expenses ~ #TE&E L#HEE A

(Notes 13 and 16) (Ktat13516) 41,384 33,451
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEEWNE (Hit14)

(Note 14) 22,439 26,834
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) EERMNA (HiE8) 248,882 180,951
Changes in inventories of finished goods &K m &k EHGBTFELH

and work in progress 9,969 33,900
Raw materials used and outsourcing FT A RM & RINEE A

expenses 1,106,308 815,599
(Reversal of provision)/provision for FE(BERERD) BE

inventories (Note 19) (H15#19) (5,206) 24,566
Rental expenses for short-term leases and R EHHEREKEEEEHE

leases of low-value asset Hemx 7,366 35
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN BN &

— Audit services —EZRT 2,530 3,007

— Non-audit services —EEZIRTS - 574
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE (Cont’d)

Research and development costs recognised as
expenses and charged to administrative expenses
for the year ended 31 December 2021 were
HK$271,795,000 (2020: HK$211,995,000) and mainly
comprised of employee costs of HK$150,170,000
(2020: HK$103,627,000) and material costs of
HK$49,702,000 (2020: HK$52,597,000). No research
and development costs were capitalised during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

7. RUBEISZER(E)

HE2021F1N2A3MBEFERERBRAI LA
THAX AR RFAEKA H271,795,000% T
(20204 : 211,995,000/ 70) * EEBFEEEKA
150,170,000 7T (20204F : 103,627,000 70) M
R A49,702,0007% 7T (20204 : 52,597,000
WBIT) c MEIE2021F12A31BIEEER - T &
FE R AR AT LAE AL (20206 : &) -

8. EERAMAX

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ - 2 EREWET 225,215 173,989
Contributions to retirement schemes RIRET B3R (B 2# (@) &% (b))

(Notes (a) and (b)) 23,667 6,962

248,882 180,951

(a) The Group operates a MPF Scheme for its
eligible employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s
contributions to MPF Scheme are expensed as
incurred.

(b)  The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme based
on laws and regulations in the PRC. The local
government authority of the PRC is responsible
for the pension liabilities to these retired
employees in the PRC. These PRC subsidiaries’
contributions to retirement schemes in the PRC
are expensed as incurred.

(a) FEBEREFABSEBREERIBED
g AEEYRES A ZHARNELR
SIMERIX °

(b) ARAEFBEZHMBARRETBEERZR
B S EERMBTURKGTE - TEIBRM
TRFHERBEZETBERKER ZRIK
TEE - ZETEMNME QR HHBERAKE
B2 HRREERIIERX -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE
8. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 8. EEETEFMEX(E)
(Cont’d)
()  Five highest paid individuals () ILZEBRSHFHMAL
Total emoluments paid to the five highest paid FAXNTAREELEERHMA LT ZEBE
individuals of the Group during the year are as follows: i
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ * ZEE R EWET 3,348 3,166
Bonuses TEAT 4,992 9,167
Contributions to retirement schemes BRIRETEI R 1,181 796
9,521 13,129

AEAmESFMALBEMRSE (2020F : —F) AR
REEMEEZMEN FUATE&HE :

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included two directors of the Company (2020: one) and
their emoluments were within the following bands:

Number of individuals

AE
2021 2020
20215 20204F
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T 4 -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T —2,500,000/% 7T 1 2
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T - 2
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7t —3,500,000/% 7T - 1
5 5
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the FR - AEBVERNALZESHMA T MBS

Group to the five highest paid individuals as an

inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as g o

compensation for loss of office.
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e HRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12A431H L FE
9. FINANCE COSTS - NET 0. BERK—EEE

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31MBLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Finance costs A& R A
— Interest expense on borrowings —BEZMEXZH 26,364 97,590
— Interest expense on lease liabilities - HEAaBZAMEXH 2,892 2,787
29,256 100,377
Finance income BB WA
— Interest income — F B U A (2,428) (6,437)
Finance costs — net REKA—F58 26,828 93,940
10. TAXATION 10. BHiE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLtLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Current taxation R E IR
— PRC corporate income tax —EPEMERH 488 10,291
— Withholding tax on distributed profits —BE D BE A 2 B FTEH
(Note (c)) (H1aE(c)) 3,900 5,218
4,388 15,509
Deferred taxation B IE
— PRC corporate income tax —FEEMERH (20,810) (4,986)
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — K% Btia M 2 BT
(Note (c)) (H1at(c)) 1,715 (1,705)
(19,095) (6,691)
(14,707) 8,818
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

116

TAXATION (Cont’d)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax had
been made as the Group did not generate any

assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

In accordance with the relevant regulations
of the corporate income tax laws of the PRC,
the applicable statutory tax rate of Huada
Electronics and Shanghai Huahong Integrated
Circuit Co., Ltd (“Huahong”) is 25%. However,
Huada Electronics qualified as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” and Huahong
qualified as a “State-encouraged Key Integrated
Circuit Design Enterprise” for the year ended
31 December 2021 and thus enjoyed a 15%
and 10% preferential tax rate, respectively, in
2021 (2020: Huada Electronics and Huahong
enjoyed a 10% preferential tax rate). Based
on management’s self-assessment and their
track record of success in obtaining such types
of qualifications, it is highly likely that Huada
Electronics and Huahong will qualify as a “High
and New Technology Enterprise” after the year
ended 31 December 2021 and thus will enjoy a
15% preferential tax rate.

According to the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax laws of the PRC, when
a foreign investment enterprise in the PRC
distributes dividends out of the profits earned
from 1 January 2008 onwards to its overseas
investors, such dividends are subject to
withholding tax at a rate of 10%.

10.
(a)

(b)

(c)

B (&

HRAEBNEZ2021F12A8318 IEF
EREBTEELTMERTERN - &I
BB RS T LB (20205 « £) o

RIEFBECEMAEHENERETE  EX
EFRLEBETEKERERETAF
([Z4T ) 2 BAREERREB25% © AT -
HZE2021F12A31B I FEEAETE
BlIEFEMecE | ERRETESIBR
SN EMERKERIGTEEIERL A
M R2021F D R ZX15% K% 10% 2 B =
FRE (2020F : EXETMAELZF10%
ZEEMEK) ENEEEBMNB RTMHIN
FBERINERZERNER  REZE2021
FNRANBLEFEZE  ERXEFRET
BRAEES T BEMEE] ERLE
MBEZI5% 2 EEFHRE o

BIEPBECEMEHENEBATE P
BAZIINERECEUARBREEINGE
EHE B2008F1A1EHRREEN G F -
ZERBBHMI0%NTENAAET -
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10. TAXATION (Cont‘d)

eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

10.

(d) Reconciliation between the taxation on the (d)
Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation and the
theoretical taxation that would arise using the
respective applicable statutory tax rates is as

follows:

BiIR (&

AEEKRBAAN, (BE) 2 HBEER
EREREAERERMABEZERRIA Y
R

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Profit/(loss) before taxation R A= R (E518) 112,612 (1,002,306)
Calculated at respective applicable REBHERAEEMETE
statutory tax rates ZTHIB 32,998 4,159
Effect of tax concession MIER R 2 & (18,695) (18,639)
Research and development costs T 7t K B B B AR RE AN BR
additional deductions (24,482) (13,118)
Income not subject to tax BARDTUA (411) (431)
Expenses not deductible for taxation TAIHB A X
purposes 985 24,105
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred MEEHHEEHRIEZXE
taxation (18,867) (777)
Withholding tax on distributed profits EoiaMRAER
and current year's undistributed profits RO BLm N 2 BTG 5,615 3,513
Tax losses for which no deferred tax WERBERELEHBEEZ
asset was recognised HIEEE 8,570 4,007
(Over)/under provision on taxation NRITFENRIECBERE)
in prior years BHETE (420) 5,999
Taxation IR (14,707) 8,818
(e) Deferred taxation (e) EZEHIE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215128318 20209 12AH31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHT
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 73,561 50,615
Deferred tax liabilities REFRIBEE (14,915) (12,474)
58,646 38,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

10. TAXATION (Cont‘d)

(e) Deferred taxation (Cont’d)

The movements in the deferred tax assets and
liabilities during the year without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances with
the same taxation authority are as follows:

10. H®iE (&

(e) EEHIE(E)

Th/_l.;ﬂiz%fﬁfﬁﬂifﬁH%ﬂ%%?ﬁzﬁ%%ﬁ =
NEEHRBEEERABZEFHNT

Impairment
of trade
and other
Salary and receivables
welfare Deferred  and others
Provision for payables government EZRkEf
inventories Efge grants g Total
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE FERE NER }Eﬁﬂlﬁﬁﬁﬂ BEM &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THIL THT THL THL

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 10,545 3,604 5,808 22,163 42,120
Exchange differences ERzEZ 833 264 448 1,472 3,017
Credited to the statement of profit or loss HeBREx 2,762 573 1,332 811 5,478
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A318 14,140 4441 7,588 24,446 50,615
At 1 January 2021 R2021E1A18 14,140 4,441 7,588 24,446 50,615
Exchange differences ERER 470 184 241 914 1,809
Credited to the statement of profitorloss K #ERE 3,536 3,649 1,053 12,899 21,137
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12A31H 18,146 8,274 8,882 38,259 73,561

Withholding

tax on

undistributed

Fair value profits

gains *;JEEMIJ Total

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE DAREKRZE ZBENFEHR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TEX
At 1 January 2020 20201818 3,076 9,847 12,923
Exchange differences IER%%E 226 537 763
Charged to the statement of profit or loss FABEER 493 3,513 4,006
Reclassification to current income tax payable & Xiﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ - (5,218)  (5,218)
At 31 December 2020 72020F12H31H 3,795 8,679 12,474
At 1 January 2021 120211818 3,795 8,679 12,474
Exchange differences BEH = 117 282 399
Charged to the statement of profit or loss SFABER 327 5,477 5,804
Reclassification to current income tax payable B ZE % B FTSH IB - (3,762) (3,762)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12831H 4,239 10,676 14,915
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses R IEEE T 5h %%Zfﬁﬁféﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ@w e
carrying forwards to the extent that the realisation VAT A RE 35 38 AR O 2 B AR Bt s ) & fﬁﬁf%ﬂlﬁﬂ
of the related tax benefit through the future taxable AR - FR2021F12A831H - KREBE I RG] 45
profits is probable. At 31 December 2021, the Group B2 DA SH R SR FE =R B i M) < B T E5 #873,505, 000
did not recognise deferred tax assets of HK$13,858,000 7T (20204F : 413,876,000/ 7o) 1 MLLM
(2020: HK$69,478,000) in respect of tax losses I8 & & 13,858, 000%557_5 (2020@ 69,478,000/
amounting to HK$73,505,000 (2020: HK$413,876,000) 70) ° 53,159,0005% 7T %% 18 fi5 48 36 & 1= % B Hﬁ
that can be carried forward against future taxable (20204 : 399,890,000 7T) * 20,346,000/
income. Tax losses of HK$53,159,000 has no expiry T AS4E X [ 7 (20204 13,986,000 7T) ©

date (2020: HK$399,890,000), and HK$20,346,000 will
expire within 5 years (2020: HK$13,986,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

11. DIVIDEND

1. RKRE

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31MBLEE

2021 2020

202145 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Proposed dividend BERE 38,568 -

The Board recommends the payment of a dividend of
HK1.9 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: nil). The proposed dividend is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.
The proposed dividend of HK$38,568,000 (2020: nil),
calculated based on the Company’s number of shares
issued at 28 March 2022, is not recognised as a liability
in the consolidated financial statements.

12. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings/(loss) per share is
based on the following data:

BEEEREAREE2021F12831B L FEIR
FAR1.9810 (2020F - )R B - ZEZ KR EA
BARRABRERARRRIEERRBF NG LA
% FAEE - IRIEARQFR2022F3H288H
EEITRMEE G E R EZER E38,568,000/%8 7T
(2020%F « &) W BN R E B HMENERE B
BfE -

12. BRERN (FE)

SREARF,/ (BIR) IR E T BB E -

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to AKARERFEERLZ
owners of the Company (HK$’000) REFERAN(&8) (F5rT) 125,444 (1,013,263)

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purposes of basic
earnings/(loss) per share

Basic earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents)

FREARHN, (EE) GBI 6.18

AU EEREREZFN, (BR)
ZE B INEFIEE

2,029,872,000 2,029,872,000
(49.92)

No diluted earnings/(loss) per share is presented as the
Company did not have any potential dilutive ordinary
share outstanding.

BRAR A EEFAARBEITEESE S LA
WY BFEEGREERTN,(BR) -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -BEERXRE
Buildings and
leasehold
improvements Plant and Motor Furniture ~ Construction
BER  machinery vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total
RENEEE HERESR BE  GAR%E EEIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL ThL
Cost RS
At 1 January 2020 R2020E181H 69,694 114,022 7,360 9,098 13,196 213,370
Additions AE - 3,694 - 343 3,044 7,081
Reclassification (Note16) ERE (i) (356) - = £ = (356)
Transfer upon completion TIER 2,757 198 - - (2,955) -
Disposals RE - (495) (397) 6) (13,076) (13,974)
Exchange differences EfER 4618 6,568 45) 604 12 12,364
At 31 December 2020 120205128318 76,713 123,987 7415 10,039 331 218,485
At 1 January 2021 R2021E181H 76,713 123,987 7415 10,039 331 218,485
Additions e - 3,393 - 1,736 17,325 22,454
Transfer upon completion TIE 9,39 3,255 - 4,674 (17,325) -
Disposals RE - 231) - (8,116) - (10,487)
Reclassification 858 = (23,382) - 23,382 - -
Exchange differences ErizH 2,398 3,357 218 196 10 6,179
At 31 December 2021 R2021%124318 88,507 108,239 7,633 31,911 M 236,631
Accumulated depreciation and ZHNERBE
impairment
At 1 January 2020 R202051 418 (49,194) (86,892) (6,529) (7,602) - (150,217)
Depreciation & (5,325) (9,334) (482) (606) = (15,747)
Disposals RE - 401 397 6 - 804
Exchange differences EREE (3,462) (5,131) (426) (522) - (9,541)
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A4318 (57,981) (100,956) (7,040) (8,724) - (174,701)
At 1 January 2021 #2021%1A18 (57,981) (100,956) (7,040) (8,724) - (174,701)
Depreciation & (6,742) (7,300) (99) (2,414) - (16,555)
Impairment HE (30) - - - - (30)
Disposals RE - 2332 - 8,049 - 10,381
Reclassification 808 - 17,678 - (17,678) - -
Exchange differences ERER (1,807) (2,268) (208) (439) - (4,722)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A318 (66,560) (90,514) (7,347) (21,206) - (185,627)
Net book amount FHEE
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A318 21,947 17,725 286 10,705 3 51,004
At 31 December 2020 2020812318 18,732 23,031 375 1,315 331 43,784

Depreciation expense of HK$1,029,000 (2020: HK$62,000),
HK$232,000 (2020: HK$46,000) and HK$15,294,000
(2020: HK$15,639,000) has been charged to selling
and marketing costs, cost of sales and administrative

expenses, respectively.
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. FRHEEE
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Beginning of the year F1 63,059 52,908
Exchange differences MEHZR 1,639 3,757
Additions NE 13,812 20,233
Effect of modification of lease EREER 260 12,995
Depreciation e (22,439) (26,834)
End of the year FR 56,331 63,059
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BREWYE

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Beginning of the year F1 51,494 48,291
Exchange differences PE =58 1,521 3,113
Changes in fair value NRAEEE 476 90
End of the year FR 53,491 51,494

(a)

(b)

(@

The investment properties are located in the
PRC and are subject to various tenancies with
terms ranging from 1 year to 3 years.

The rental income from investment
properties for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to HK$2,604,000 (2020:
HK$2,432,000).

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties at 31 December 2021 have been
arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried
out on that date by Beijing Zhuo Xin Da Hua
Appraisal Co., Ltd, an independent qualified
professional valuers not connected to the
Group. The valuation was principally based
on direct comparison method by taking into
account the terms of the existing leases and
other external evidence such as current market
rents or sales evidence for similar types of
properties in the locality, and using capitalisation
rates that reflect current market expectation
for the assets being valued. For all investment
properties, their current uses represent the
highest and best use.

(a)

(@)

SREVFHUNHEL AN EIFHZ
RHEARE

o

NN
A

NE E2021F12831B ILEE - 8B Y
WAL WA E2,604,00078 7T (20204 :
2,432,000/ 7T) °

AEBEKREMER2021F12A31BZ A
REDREBEEASEYEBFSNSERE
XEEM LRI EAEEEFEERD
AN Z BT METESE - ZEEE
ZENERLEOL - 2ERAMRL 2 KK
R E At SNE 28 1 (AR5 BT 3 b BE (B AR AL
XoHRETSHENHEERY  YFEAR
R PIEECBEEZ REMSRH AR
L EFHE) - MEKEMERTNA R
BEEREBERALRKERA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

15.
(@)

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)
(Cont’d)

At 31 December 2021, all of the fair value
measurements of the Group’'s investment
properties were categorised into Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy. Details of fair value
hierarchy classification are set out in Note
3.3. There were no transfers of fair value
measurements into or out of Level 3 during the
year.

Management of the Group works with
Beijing Zhuo Xin Da Hua Appraisal Co., Ltd
to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation methods and inputs for Level 3 fair
value measurements. Where there is a material
change in the fair value of the assets, the causes
of the fluctuations will be reported to the Board.

Information about fair value measurements using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) is as follows:

Fair value at 31

15. BREYWHE (&)
© (&)

R2021F12A31H  AREEFAEKEY
(¥NARENEHFEEAE AR BERRIER
HE=H - RAERFIRBEHDEFBFH
R FE33RN - RFEARN - ZFEREWEL
EANRBEFEEARELE=R -

AEBERERIEREERELETHA
BARAREBYLMEEEEE =R 2BR
Bt ENEEAEREE -EEEAARE
HIREAREE  BRESFEREBNR
o

ERERNEUBREZBBEAAENE (F=
RIMBEAERLDT :

Range of
unobservable Relationship of
inputs/weighted unobservable inputs to

December 2021 Valuation Unobservable average fair value
Description 202112831 method(s) inputs HUBZE 8EE BUBECEEHEALE
3 AZARE ®EFE BEUBRZEE B/ MEFHE HEE
HK$'000
T
Office building and 53,491 Direct Market price RMB31,482 The higher the market
carparks — Beijing comparison M5B per square metre  price, the higher the
BYEREM-IR method S HK  fairvalue
BERLBUA ARH31,48270 MGERES  ARE
e
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. EREE
Computer
software
E - EIg e
HK$'000
FETT
Year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE2020F12A31B L E
Opening net book amount FYREFEE 1,961
Exchange differences PE N =% 1,916
Reclassification (Note 13) B (KE13) 356
Additions NE 49,320
Amortisation b3 (17,704)
Closing net book amount FRREFE 35,849
At 31 December 2020 72020%12A31H
Cost BN 63,038
Accumulated amortisation g 3 (27,189)
Net book amount SRHEFE 35,849
Year ended 31 December 2021 B ZE2021F12831B L FE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 35,849
Exchange differences PE 7 =58 1,339
Additions NE 43,588
Amortisation 5 (24,829)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 55,947
At 31 December 2021 "2021%12A831H
Cost DN 104,464
Accumulated amortisation RET# 5 (48,517)
Net book amount Mm% E 55,947
Amortisation expense amounting to HK$24,829,000 # §5 9 224,829,000/% 7T (20204 : 17,704,000
(2020: HK$17,704,000) has been charged to research BIL) BEETATTEFAYXIE N 2 K FHEK A -

and development costs under administrative expenses.
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 12431 B IEFE
17. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 17. REEAQATRE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Beginning of the year F9 15,936 2,707,889
Share of post-acquisition results FEIE R ¥ E 108 91,293
Exchange differences fE & =% 803 151,206
Dividend i B (178) (63,845)
Share of currency translation differences  [E{h & ¥R E =58 S (8,824)
Disposal k= - (2,861,783)
End of the year FR 16,669 15,936
Details of the associate at 31 December 2021 and 2020 B2 N B FR20214F K2020F12A318 2 & 1B 1
are as follows: T
Interest held by the Group
Place of establishment  Principal place of rEEfEER
Name and type of legal entity  operation and activities Paid-in capital 2021 2020
28 RUBHERAAME TEEEBERER BEhEX 2021% 2020%F
Beijing Chipadvanced PRC, limited liability PRC, provision of integrated RMB57,907,381 7.29% 7.29%
Technology Inc. company circuit testing services AER#57,907,3817C
ERER R R HE - BREAAR hE RESKERAH
BRAAF R
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the 202112 A3 BAKEREE R RIMERIL
Group's interest in associate at 31 December 2021 BB AE (20204 : £)
(2020: nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EZ R HMEWIE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20214%12831H 2020912 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT F&TT
Trade receivables =7 & 618,864 594,541
Less: Loss allowance for Ji B S IE R (M b))
impairment (Note (b)) (82,580) (86,625)
Trade receivables — net B EIWRIE - F58 536,284 507,916
Other receivables from third parties H bW S = 5 FIE 5,096 5,826
Less: Loss allowance for J OB B R E (H i)
impairment (Note (c)) (2,073) (1,910)
Other receivables from third parties HiaEURE = HKIB—F58
- net 3,023 3,916
Other receivables from related parties — E i & W B B 75 5018
(Note 31) (Bra#31) 10,938 9,367
Undeducted input value-added tax RBR B ETHIR BT
and prepaid tax SSENNE TR 14,220 19,041
Prepayments and deposits BRRBERES 186,025 3,742
750,490 543,982
Less: non-current receivables Ji c FER B FE MR IR (2,839) (1,627)
747,651 542,355
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Cont’d)

Trade and other receivables were unsecured and
interest-free. Included in the balance of trade
receivables are trade receivables from related parties
of HK$22,855,000 (2020: HK$58,736,000) (Note 31).
Included in the balance of prepayments and deposits
are prepayments to related parties of HK$7,204,000
(2020: nil) (Note 31).

Trade and other receivables of the Group at 31
December 2021 and 2020 were denominated in the
following currencies:

18. EFRHMEWIRE (&)

EoREMBBKRREBYAERIFREE 5T A
EoRWARBELEBAZEB T ESEKKEL
22,855,0007 7T (20204 : 58,736,000/ 7T) (#f
231) T ATBNRBERZSEHAZ B 5B
FIEE7,204,00078 7T (20204 - &) (f12231) -

N E B FA20214F K2020F12A31H 28 5 M A
o fE W R IB IR S &I DT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215128318 20209 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Renminbi AR 749,933 543,441
Hong Kong dollars BT 557 541
750,490 543,982

(a) The majority of the Group's sales are with (a) AEBZHERBN 2EEHR30BE

credit terms of 30 days to 180 days. The
remaining sales are due immediately after
the delivery of goods. The ageing analysis of
trade receivables (net of loss allowance for
impairment) presented based on the revenue
recognition date is as follows:

180H  EHRBEERNERER XK F
Hy o IRIBUAFERR B SR E 5 R UGRIR
(IR RERBERE) WRETOT

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215128318 2020F12H31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Current to 30 days 308 149,221 114,637
31 - 60 days 31HE60H 187,225 71,648
61 — 180 days 61H£2180H 190,526 250,734
Over 180 days and within 1 year 180H A ER1F A 7,398 49,245
Over 1 year 1A 1,914 21,652
536,284 507,916
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. EBESZRHMEWRIE(Z)
(Cont’d)
(b) Movements in the loss allowance for (b) rEEESEWFIBRERERE 2 E
impairment of the Group’s trade receivables are wmr
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A3MBLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Beginning of the year F1] 86,625 71,016
(Net reversal of impairment losses)/ CREEEFRR)
impairment losses A E R (6,493) 10,453
Exchange differences PE X =R 2,448 5,156
End of the year FR 82,580 86,625

At 31 December 2021, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables measured at
amortised cost was HK$429,847,000 (2020:
HK$391,858,000), of which HK$354,162,000
(2020: HK$285,119,000) was within one year
with expected credit loss rate of 2.4% (2020:
0.1%), HK$2,067,000 (2020: HK$22,519,000)
was between one year to five years with
expected credit loss rate ranging from
25.7% to 52.8% (2020: 5.1% to 68.5%),
HK$21,073,000 (2020: HK$20,602,000) was
over five years with expected credit loss rate of
100.0% (2020: 100.0%), and HK$52,545,000
(2020: HK$63,618,000) was from customers
with specific credit risk with expected credit
loss rate of 100.0% (2020: 100.0%).

R2021F 128318 BB EK AT EH
H 5 e W F A BR A 488 /429,847,000
7t (20204F : 391,858,000/&7T) * D AlE
354,162,0005% 7T (20204 : 285,119,000
BIL) B1FER BHEEBIBXRAE24%
(20204 : 0.1%) - 2,067,0005% 7T (2020
% : 22,519,000/ 7t) B1F =54 - FHH
EEEEBXRNF25.7%%E52.8% (2020
F:51%%68.5%) *21,073,000/% 7T
(20204 : 20,602,000/ 7T) BSE LA L -
FEHEERBIE R A100.0% (20204F :
100.0%) ' &52,545,0007%8 7t (20204 :
63,618,000 7Tt) RKER BRERFEER

SHEBER  BHEEEBEEXAE100.0%
(2020¢ £100.0%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z2021612A31H ILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18. EFRHMEWIRE (&)

(Cont’d)
(c) Movements in the loss allowance for () REBHMEWRIBREBERE &
impairment of the Group’s other receivables are (N
as follows:
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31MBLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Beginning of the year F 4 1,910 567
Impairment losses EEE 105 1,237
Exchange differences MEHER 58 106
End of the year FR 2,073 1,910

Other receivables are mainly rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and advance to
employees. Majority of the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent
record of default. In the situation where no
companies with comparable credit ratings can be
identified, expected credit losses are estimated by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss
rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. The loss rate applied for such
receivables at 31 December 2021 was 45.9%
(2020: 38.6%).

19. INVENTORIES

EMmEWZREFrEAHSZS « HEFK
S NIBREERIE o LA EKI D 4Aep8EY
ST NSRRI TIER R - EEE
HAER L EEFANATMBERAT » 8
HEEREERAFR2EAEEBRAESE
SOERHMES 1B R A TG o BIERBEE
AR DA R R IR AT AR O B R AR A B AR R B
FEOR (ans@ ) - I E R W FRIAR20214F
12 A31BFTERMETE R 545.9% (2020
F :386%)

3t
[y
Mg

19.

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215128318 20209 12A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEx FHET

Work in progress & 161,471 167,762
Finished goods UK o 370,180 332,348
531,651 500,110

The cost of inventories recognised as expense
and included in cost of sales amounted to
HK$1,116,277,000 (2020: HK$849,499,000).

Reversal of provision for inventories of HK$5,206,000
(2020: provision for inventories of HK$24,566,000) has
been charged to cost of sales.

RBAXLFAAHBENARZTFERAER
1,116,277,00078 7T (20204F : 849,499,000/ 7T ) °

B 805,206,000 T 2 FEEEEE (20204 :
24,566,000 T2 7 E#H) EFT ABEERAR ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

200 BARENARSESMEE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

20215128318 20209 12AH31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Wealth management products MEEREM 10,886 15,403

The wealth management products are issued
by commercial banks in the PRC. These wealth
management products are principal protected and
with non-guaranteed return, denominated in Renminbi
and can be redeemed either at any time or at certain
time within three months. The fair values of these
investments were determined with reference to either
the statements provided by the commercial banks or
discounted cash flow method.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AND RESTRICTED CASH

(a) Cash and cash equivalents

MEEEEM I ATHEBRRITERT ZSHE
EREMDARANRIFRERR  UARKFHE
KAl MR R sk =8 A AR E TREED - %
ERENDAENIEL2EB/ERITARANEER
ByFRNSREZMETE

2. BERREFEYNZRIRE

(a) HERREEEY

31 December 31 December

2021 2020
20215128318 20209 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FTEx FHT
Cash R
At banks and on hand RITEFEREB S 395,077 163,533
At other financial institutions Hfth 58 5 15
— A related party (Note 31) —@t s (Hat31) 61,700 151,731
456,777 315,264
Short-term time deposits (Note (i) 52 HATE BATE SR (M1 72(1))
At other financial institutions HA i BB a1
— A related party (Note 31) — @ (B a31) 61,155 150,147
517,932 465,411

(i) Short-term time deposits represent deposits with original
maturity of 3 months or less.

(b) Restricted cash

As at 31 December 2021, cash of
HK$1,404,000 was held at banks as security
for bank acceptance bills. As at 31 December
2020, time deposits of HK$59,408,000 and
cash of HK$1,820,000 were held at banks as
security for bank borrowings of HK$58,814,000
and bank acceptance bills, respectively.

() BEHERFARDIERIBERIEARKRTZ2FR -

(b) ERERE

M2021FE128318  RPT 2R &
1,404,0008 TTIE &R 1T R A IEE 2 &
R o 20205128318 RBETZ2EH
17 759,408,000/ 7T & IR 4 1,820,000/%
TG P REAIRTTIE B 58,814,000 T &
RITENIEZ Z IR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE
22. TIME DEPOSITS 22, EHEX
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215128318 20209 12H31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi# T
At banks RITHETT - 50,000
At other financial institutions H b B i i 17
— A related party (Note 37) —BAEE 5 (K7 at31) 721,624 665,368
721,624 715,368
Less: non-current time deposits J8 - JEmEN T BRI TE X (244,618) =
477,006 715,368
Time deposits represent deposits with original maturity EHERNDERIBEAMEANLEZER -
over 3 months. The effective interest rate on these R2021F12A31H  ZEBFARZ2EBRFF R A
deposits at 31 December 2021 was 2.7% (2020: 2.2%) 2.7% (2020%F : 2.2%)
per annum.
23. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 23. BRARGE
Ordinary share of
HK$0.01 each
SREEIETZERR
Issued and Share
Authorised fully paid  Share capital premium Total
EE CEBERTRAR B B 5 RE &t
‘000 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TEL FTAEL TAET
At 1 January 2020 and #2020F1818 K
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454
At 1 January 2021 20211818 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 805,155 825,454
Transfer to contributed ERZEHRH%
surplus = - - (600,000) (600,000)
At 31 December 2021  #2021%12831H 30,000,000 2,029,872 20,299 205,155 225,454
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12A431H L FE
24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24, HEAE

Year ended 31 December
HZEZ12A31MBLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Beginning of the year F 4] 67,067 53,850
Exchange differences M N ZE5E 1,731 3,979
Interest on the lease liabilities HEBEFE 2,927 2,787
New leases g E 13,812 20,233
Effect of modification of lease BRHEENTE 255 12,132
Lease payments HE = (26,922) (25,914)
End of the year FR 58,870 67,067
Analysed for reporting purposes as: EDMMmERE -
Current portion Yk JE:3%) 31,429 29,132
Non-current portion JEMENED 1D 27,441 37,935
58,870 67,067
25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25. BEZRHEMENRIE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215128318 20209 12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Trade payables g 5N HIEA 407,511 284,104
Other payables to related parties H b FE 1 B Bk 5 IE
(Note 31) (Bt7E31) 7,663 7,426
Salary and welfare payables FEI % & T ta A 76,325 61,310
Other taxes payables H At fE A 18 2,462 1,751
Other payables and accrued expenses  EL i & < 3R IE 2 fE 51 & A
(Note (a)) (K17t(a)) 232,267 220,470
726,228 575,061
Less: non-current payables J8 IR B FE S SR IE (7,577) (15,936)
718,651 559,125
(a) Other payables and accrued expenses mainly (a) EMEMZERESERTEARMNAR
represented payables for software usage fees MELEZEN Z2®HFERE MEE R
for the purposes of research and development & o

and sales commissions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Cont’d)

The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based
on the date of invoices is as follows:

25. BEZRHMENSREE)

RIZET B HS R E 5 BN RIER BRER 2 T8
T E

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021%£12831H 2020912 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FETT

Current to 30 days 30HA 207,890 138,695
31 — 60 days 31H £260H 110,108 62,257
Over 60 days 60H A k£ 89,513 83,152
407,511 284,104

Included in the balance of trade payables are trade
payables from related parties of HK$40,156,000 (2020:
HK$17,306,000) (Note 317).

26. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

AABSEMNRBEGAN BT E S EMNK
18 /40,156,000 7T (20204 : 17,306,000% 7T)
(K17£31) -

26. IEIEBAT#EED

Year ended 31 December

BZ12831BLLEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET F& T

Beginning of the year F4 58,454 43,667
Exchange differences MEH ZRR 1,705 3,445
Additions 0 1,807 20,911
Credited to the statement of profit or loss #E#E =& (2,755) (9,569)
End of the year FR 59,211 58,454

Government grants represent various grants received
from local government authorities for financing various
research and development projects conducted by the
Group. These grants will be recognised as income over
the period necessarily to match them with the cost that
they are intended to compensate.

BT 4 B 4R B B BY AN Sk B 1T WY B FE AT ST M B 3
T8 B B 307 BT R R B B TR B o X F
B —E MR AR R - AR ERE T IA
58 R YR ANBCEE ©
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

27. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

27. RITKRHEHMEE

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

2021F12831H 2020412 A31H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAETT

Bank borrowings RITIEE 599,315 641,011
Entrusted loans from related parties B ZEER

(Note 31) (Ha£31) 73,386 71,289

672,701 712,300

Secured iz - 58,814

Unsecured 1 45 $ 672,701 653,486

672,701 712,300

All the bank and other borrowings of the Group were
borrowed at fixed interest rates. The average effective
interest rate of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
at 31 December 2021 was 4.0% (2020: 4.1%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of
HK$599,315,000 were guaranteed by CEC.

All the bank and other borrowings of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi.

FIBEAEBZHRITREMEEYEEFNEEG
B o R2021F12A31H » REBRITREMEE
L ERRERN K BA4.0% (20205 1 4.1%) ©

202112 A318 A #(599,315,000/8 7T B R
TEERPEE FEBIRMEER-

BEARB 2 RITREMEEGAAREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

28. CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM 28. BEE4XCZHEERE
OPERATIONS
Year ended 31 December
BZ12H31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit/(loss) before taxation B Fi AR A (Ei8) 112,612 (1,002,306)
Adjustments for: FHE
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERZETE
and equipment 16,555 15,747
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE 22,439 26,834
Amortisation of intangible assets EREEESH 24,829 17,704
Interest income FLE U A (22,589) (17,559)
Interest expenses FEX 29,256 100,377
Loss on disposal of an associate HE—FEERREE - 1,080,850
Loss on disposal of property, BREME BEREE
plant and equipment &8 215 25
Gain on modification of lease BT & W e (5) (863)
Share of results of associates i NI (108) (91,293)
(Net reversal of impairment losses)/ B 5 & H A e W Gk IE
impairment losses on trade and CREEBEFRED),
other receivables BEEBE (6,388) 11,690
(Reversal of provision)/provision for Ty (BERRD) EBE
inventories (5,206) 24,566
Changes in fair value of REMEARBEES
investment properties (476) (90)
Fair value gains on financial assets at EZ AR BT ABTZ S/
fair value through profit or loss BEARERS (209) (332)
170,925 165,350
Changes in working capital LEEEH
Inventories rE (26,335) (64,063)
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EH th e Wz (202,683) 156,921
Deferred government grants iR AE TR /6 B 757 14,787
Contract liabilities AEHBE 23,208 5,397
Trade and other payables B 5 I H th JE ;I8 142,877 6,296
Restricted cash X R AR e 59,824 (1,820)
Cash flows generated from operations &EBE4LZHERE 168,573 282,868
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

29. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group as lessor
The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are
as follows:

29. HEXRIE
AEBEAEBEA

AREBERBENA R 2 EREMNRREWR 2
REHERAEBELT :

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
20215%F12831H 20209F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx FAT
Within one year 1R 2,881 2,799
After one year but within two years FIFEREFE2FRN 2,881 2,799
5,762 5,598
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 300 HEBEAE

The Group did not have any material contingent liability
at 31 December 2021 (2020: nil).

R2021F12A318 » AEBEUEEREANSEE
& (20204 : &) o
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e BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AND BALANCES

In addition to those transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group entered into the following significant
transactions in the ordinary course of business with
related parties during the year:

31.

BT X5 R AR

BFRAGEMBHREIEMILENERBENRS RE
BN RAFEARNEB RN B E XL BET R

ki

ETT TIEREARS -

(a) Significant transactions with related (d) EBEHEBAEZEAXRS
parties
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FATT
CEC FEETFER
Interest expenses FB X H 2,877 2,944
Guarantee fee ERE 2,952 11,252
Companies under common THEEFEE
control of CEC HEZEHZQF]
Sale of products HEEM 102,823 85,915
Purchase of goods and services REE R MRE 132,057 106,990
Interest income FEWA 17,679 11,964
Rental income e WA 2,604 2,432
Property management fee MEEESB 3,667 5,034
Additions of right-of-use assets NEFTHEEE 13,182 30,137
Maximum daily balance of financial MASEEREVBED 2
assistances provided to the Group =T A &% 68,690 91,796
Maximum daily balance of deposits REBFERZTFRZ
(together with interests accrued B HER(BE
thereon) placed by the Group FREEZFE) 979,710 921,652
Disposal of an associate & — B2 R A = 1,785,000
Associate R BN
Purchase of goods and services REE R MRE 11,299 8,818
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. BEAEIXZR&EE (2
AND BALANCES (Cont’d)
(b) Significant balances with related (b) EHREE A 2E K&
parties
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021%12A31H 20209F12A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FA7T
CEC PEETEE
Borrowings BE 73,386 71,289
Companies under common FHEEFEE
control of CEC HEEZEHZ AR
Trade receivables Z 5 e W RIE 22,855 58,736
Other receivables H b fE W SIE
— Accrued interest income and - FEET A B A R E Aty
other receivables & U SR IE 10,938 8,856
- Prepayments - B KIA 7,204 -
Cash and deposits He kTR 844,479 967,246
Contract liabilities BHEE 4,825 3,648
Trade payables 2 5 T IE 36,357 16,197
Other payables H th f& ~f ;I8 7,663 7,216
Associate i RN |
Trade payables g 5 A RIE 3,799 1,109
Other than the cash and deposits and the borrowings BRIRE RERANEE RSN - il &5
which are interest bearing, the above balances with BERWH B TWIEBEHENSRIGEREE - 4@
related parties were unsecured, interest-free and BHEEREERRIZE N E3.9% (20205 :
settled according to the relevant contract terms. The 4.4%)5HE o

borrowings from related parties are unsecured and with
an interest rate of 3.9% (2020: 4.4%) per annum.

() Key management compensation (0 TEEEAEME
Year ended 31 December

BE12A31BLLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F& T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  # 4 - E8E & T ¥4E 4,488 5,479
Contributions to retirement schemes IRIRET B LR 842 619
5,330 6,098
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 124318 It FE

32. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

3. ABALQAUBMRRKR2ESR

COMPANY
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021128318 2020%F12H31H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hii FHT F& T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BERERE 627 696
Right-of-use assets ERAEERE 5,584 3,764
Investments in subsidiaries AN ENGIES ) 33 1,047,274 1,047,274
1,053,485 1,051,734
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables H 5 & E 4th e W 508 5,459 4,982
Financial assets at fair value BAREABZ
through profit or loss EREE 10,886 10,369
Time deposits & HIF K = 50,000
Restricted cash PR HIIR & = 59,408
Cash and cash equivalents HeRkBE2EEY 146,573 118,610
162,918 243,369
Total assets EEBE 1,216,403 1,295,103
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EXxRERE
Equity =
Share capital and premium AR AN K s (B 23 225,454 825,454
Reserves ] (@) 393,305 194,740
Accumulated losses 2518 (a) (10,725) (389,035)
608,034 631,159
Liabilities =R
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,695 2,476
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E Al A IR 3,244 6,420
Bank and other borrowings RITMEMEER 599,315 641,011
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,015 1,284
Income tax payable BT TSR 18 100 12,753
604,674 661,468
Total liabilities BEHAE 608,369 663,944
Total equity and liabilities EEZREEHEsHE 1,216,403 1,295,103

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved by the Board on 28 March 2022 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Xu Haidong ¥ X

Director %

138
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#ofE - WA NIALTRERSE:

Liu Hongzhou 24T M
Director &%
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e HRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021F12A431H L FE
32. INFORMATION ABOUT STATEMENT 3. BEEARAMERRAKR2ESR

OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE (&)
COMPANY (Cont’d)

(a) Reserves and accumulated losses (a) RERZEFER
Retained
earnings/
(accumulated
Translation Contributed losses)
reserve surplus  RE%F
B R Bzt (R2HEHB)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET
At 1 January 2020 20201818 (5,664) 231,971 74,771
Total comprehensive income ECIE Y K- (31,567) = (417,119)
Payment of dividend A R B — = (46,687)
At 31 December 2020 72020128318 (37,231) 231,971 (389,035)
At 1 January 2021 M2021F181H (37,231) 231,971 (389,035)
Total comprehensive income EEIE ey - (12,400) = (10,725)
Transfer from share premium ERARNRE - 600,000 -
Elimination of accumulated losses #fi$57ANA &) Rt 18
of the Company - (389,035) 389,035
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 (49,631) 442,936 (10,725)
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the BREABRZEI9QIFEAAE KRB ZEHMBHA]
contributed surplus of the Company is distributable to REZ R RVEFSMEFEIAZE TRA T DI TR
shareholders in certain circumstances as specified in B oo

Section 54 thereof.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z£2021F 12 A31HIFFE

33. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 33. RMIBARIRKRE
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021%12H31H 202012 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Investments — unlisted equity interests, &% & —JF F %4 -
at cost B AE 1,047,274 1,047,274
Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December T EHE R A R20214F F2020F12A8318 2 5
2021 and 2020 are as follows: BT :

Interest held

iy 3+
2021 2020
Place of establishment Principal place of 20215 20205
Name and type of legal entity operation and activities Paid-in capital ~ Directly Indirectly  Directly  Indirectly
R RIBHERAFME TREEBURER BhER E# B & EE k3
Huada Electronics  PRC, limited liability company  PRC, design and sale of RMB446,800,000 100% - 100% -
EXET mE - EREAAR integrated circuit chips AR %446,800,0007
e ERBRTHZ
Rt RIHE
Huahong PRC, limited liability company ~ PRC, design and sale of RMB158,471,000 - 95.64% - 95.64%
e HE AREMAF integrated circuit chips A K#158,471,0007
hE - ERBRLRZ
Rat RHE
The Board is of the opinion that the non-controlling EXERA EUIHERBEREASEMES B
interests of Huahong is immaterial to the Group and TEE WWEBBRET 2B ER -
thus the financial information of Huahong is not
disclosed.
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eV BHRRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE

3. XAQBEENHE

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its
subsidiaries, are as follows:

()

HZE2021F128318 LEE

EREE (BRAQRNENE QR REHRE M
B ERMEmT

Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits costs Discretionary

Name of director Fee Salary HipEFI EKEF bonus Total
EEps ik e FTEMEER A MERA CEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TR THT THERT TERT
Xu Haidong® FEES - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou el = 750 - 384 5820 1,716
Chang Feng? "¢ e - 209 - 72 - 281
Liu Jinmei 251 - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRiEE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng ilpde 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum FR 200 - - - - 200
Dong Haoran® BHER® - - - - - -
Yu Jian® Efgo - - - - - -
600 959 - 456 582 2,597

1)

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Discretionary bonus for the year 2020 approved and paid in
2021.

Mr. Chang Feng did not receive any emolument from the
Company in his capacity as an executive director of the
Company. In Mr. Chang Feng’s capacity as the general manager
of Huada Electronics, he received a total of HK$281,000 for the
period from 1 September 2021 to 31 December 2021.
Appointed in April 2021

Resigned in April 2021

Appointed in September 2021

Resigned in September 2021

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors had waived any
emoluments during the year.

1)

(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

20205 BB TEAT R 2021 SE S HE A2 B 3SR -

RHEERARRITES - gL EREHAR RUERE
NS - MEEEAREFREE - BIEKLER20216F9
A1 ZE2021412A318 |E B B A4 $£281,0007%
775 o

R2021F4 BRI
R2021F4 R B fE
R2021FIOAEZ(E
2021F9 A BT

RAFEAR  AEEYEAE SN ERN
BAKENRNBEE 2 RESERRET ZME -1
AEEATESESTHEREAME
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & ZE2021F 12431 B IEFE
34. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS OF

THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2020

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or its

subsidiaries, are as follows:

3. ARBEBHME (F)

(i) #HZE2020512A31BLFE

ERES (BRAQRNENB QR REHRL M

BRI EIT

Estimated
money value  Retirement
of other benefit
benefits costs  Discretionary

Name of director Fee Salary HAb g FIh BIRAEF bonus Total
HEEL i W ATEWEE A 1 L AL At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt SR SR T Tt T
Dong Haoran BER - - - - - -
Yu Jian B - - - - - -
Liu Hongzhou B4 M - 750 - 302 1,283 2,335
Liu Jinmei 25h1g - - - - - -
Chan Kay Cheung BRIE 200 - - - - 200
Qiu Hongsheng Bk 4 200 - - - - 200
Chow Chan Lum R 200 - - - - 200
600 750 5 302 1,283 2,935

m Discretionary bonus for the year 2019 approved and paid in

2020.

M 2019 B IS FEAT R 2020 F S HE 4% I 30 -
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S A s
mEMBHRERMNE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z%2021F12A31H L FE
35. NET CASH 35. RELFH
31 December 31 December
2021 2020
2021%12H31H 2020912 A31H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRB2EFEEYD 517,932 465,411
Time deposits EHFR 721,624 715,368
Restricted cash X PR # I8 & 1,404 61,228
Borrowings repayable —FREEEE
within one year (672,701) (712,300)
Lease liabilities HEAE (58,870) (67,067)
Net cash & F58 509,389 462,640
Cash, time deposits and Be o THFERR
restricted cash SRR IR & 1,240,960 1,242,007
Gross debt — fixed interest rates BREE-BTEANX (672,701) (712,300)
Lease liabilities HEaE (58,870) (67,067)
Net cash & F5E 509,389 462,640
Liabilities
from
financing
activities -
Other assets T
sfiEE repayable
within
one year
RETBHN
Time  Restricted BE- Lease
Cash deposits cash —E® liabilities Total
R EHER  RRHRE RERE HESE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TET TAT TAT
Year ended EZ202012R31A
31 December 2020 LEE
Opening net cash/(debt) FNRe/ (B FHE 350,219 450,994 - (2,187,988) (53,850)  (1,440,625)
Cash flows Beneg 96,303 264,374 61,228 1,530,819 23,127 1,975,851
Exchange differences ERER A 18,889 = = (55,131) (3,979) (40,221)
Other non-cash movements Hip#H 228 = = = = (32,365) (32,365)
Closing net cash/(debt) EXRe/ (EH)FH 465,411 715,368 61,228  (712,300) (67,067) 462,640
Year ended BZ2021512R31A
31 December 2021 LEE
Opening net cash/(debt) MR/ (BK) 58 465,411 715,368 61,228  (712,300) (67,067) 462,640
Cash flows AEME 3,580 6,256 (59,824) 59,639 23,995 33,646
Exchange differences EHEH 48,941 - - (20,040) (1,731) 27,170
Other non-cash movements EiReg - - - = (14,067) (14,067)
Closing net cash/(debt) FXRe/ (B%)FHE 517,932 721,624 1,404  (672,701) (58,870) 509,389
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Financial Summary

3 MRS
MEERFEE
RESULTS ¥E
Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017
20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET THT FET THET
Revenue ON 1,324,556 1,695,486 1,686,996 1,453,035
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable ZAFEHEF,/ (BE) ZBR
to owners of the Company ARARGRREE (1,013,263) 155,159 113,321 220,097
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
31 December
12A31H
2020 2019 2018 2017
20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THT FET THET
Total assets BELR 2,562,239 4,905,875 4,969,091 5,074,820
Total liabilities BERE (1,449,869) (2,849,109) (3,027,908) (3,032,910)
1,112,370 2,056,766 1,941,183 2,041,910
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